VILLAGE OF

NORTH
@\ AURORA

Crossroads on the Fox

PLAN COMMISSION AGENDA
TUESDAY, JANUARY 5, 2021
7:00 PM

Due to the current COVID-19 pandemic, the Plan Commission meeting will be conducted live remotely
using the Zoom telecommunications platform to help prevent the spread of COVID-19. The public is
invited to attend the meeting and participate remotely as follows:

Website Address: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89550864774
Meeting ID: 895 5086 4774
Dial In: +1 312 626 6799

This procedure is being followed pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS
120/2.01 et seq.) as amended by Public Act 101-0640.

ROLL CALL
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Approval of Plan Commission Minutes dated December 1, 2020.

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Petition #21-01 (314 Kingswood Dr. & 200 Overland Dr.): The petitioner, Josh Bauer - OPUS

Development Company, LLC, requests the following actions on the subject properties:

1) Map Amendment to establish the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial Zoning
District (Golf Course Property)

2) Special Use - Planned Unit Development with deviations to the Zoning and Subdivision
Ordinances

3) Site Plan Approval

4) Preliminary Final Plat

NEW BUSINESS

1. Petition #21-01 (314 Kingswood Dr. & 200 Overland Dr.): The petitioner, Josh Bauer - OPUS

Development Company, LLC, requests the following actions on the subject properties:

1) Map Amendment to establish the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial Zoning
District (Golf Course Property)

2) Special Use - Planned Unit Development with deviations to the Zoning and Subdivision
Ordinances

3) Site Plan Approval

4) Preliminary Final Plat

OLD BUSINESS
PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND PROJECT UPDATES

ADJOURNMENT



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 1, 2020

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Brackett called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL
In attendance: Chairman Mike Brackett, Vice Chairperson Jennifer Duncan, Commissioners Aaron
Anderson, Tom Lenkart, Doug Botkin and Connie Holbrook

Not in attendance: Commissioners Anna Tuohy, Mark Bozik

Staff in attendance: Village Administrator Steve Bosco, C‘ommunity & Economic Development Director
Mike Toth and Information Technology Manager Dave Azndt,

Also in attendance: Ed Boula, Village Legal Representation

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of Plan Commission Minutes dated“()z@t,qb,ér 6, 2020 !
Motion for approval made by Vice Chaitperson Jennifer Duncan dnd seconded by Commissioner Anderson.
All in favor. Motion approved.

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Petition #20-08 (307 Banbury Road): The petitioner, Marcos Rodriguez, requests the following
actions on the subject property located in the R-1 Single Family Residence District:

1) Special use to allow for the expansion of a Place of Worship
2) Site Plan Approval

Vice Chairperson Jennifer Duncan opened the public hearing. The petitioner then gave a presentation on
the item. Caitlin Paloian, Rosanova & Whitaker, Ltd., provided background information on Chapelstreet
Church. Paloian stated that Chapelstreet Chu_rch has over 850 members across four (4) different locations.
The property consists of 3.19 acres and is located at 307 Banbury Road. The 6,090 sf building was formerly
Cornerstone Community Baptist Church. In May 2020, the property was donated to Chapelstreet Church.
Palojan stated that there is not enough adequate space for family engagement and children’s activities,
which is why the petitioner is requesting approval for a 3,100 sf addition to the existing building as well as
plans to renovate approximately 5,000 sf of the existing interior. Access will continue to be provided off of
Banbury Road. In regards to parking, places of worship are required to provide one (1) parking space per
four (4) seats. The proposed addition would accommodate 237 seats, which would require 60 parking spaces
per code. There are currently 62 parking spaces and the petitioner intends on adding additional parking for
a total of 68 spaces. Paloian stated that the proposed addition and renovations will facilitate a more modern
approach to church operations. The 2,650 sf worship center will primarily be used on Sundays at 9:00 AM
with a potential to add a second service at 10:30 AM. The 2,215 sflobby will be used primarily for gathering
before and after services. The renovations will also include a 384 sf area used for administrative offices.
The proposed addition will primarily be used for worship educational spaces, including a large group room,
nursery, and flex classrooms. The proposed addition will not exceed the height of the current building. It
will be constructed with brick, concrete fagade and shingled roof.




Community and Economic Development Director Mike Toth stated that the petitioner is requesting two (2)
approvals including, a special use to allow for an expansion and site plan approval. Staff is recommending
approval for both requests with the condition that a shade tree be added at the terminus of the eastern most
parking spaces on the north and south side.

Nora Rodriguez, resident of North Aurora, asked for further explanation of the parking for the church.
Paloian responded that there will be a total of 68 parking spaces. There will be no changes made to the rear
parking area. Toth responded that there was an existing building there that burned down and the foundation
still remains. The foundation will be removed during the construction of the addition.

Alexander Umemoto, resident of North Aurora, asked where the new trees will be planted. Toth responded
that a shade tree will be added to the north and south of the eastern parking lot spaces. There will also be
foundation plantings around the addition as well. Umemoto also asked about the HVAC on the north side
of the building. Marcos Rodriguez, Aspen Group, responded that the mechanical units will be located on a
slab with plantings around it for screening. It will look similar to the units on the west side, but with more
screening.

Jennifer Duncan then closed the public portion of the hearing.

Petition #20-09 (161 S. Lincolnway): The petitioner, PharmaCann, LLC, requests a special use to
allow for the expansion of an Adult-Use Cannabis- Dispensing Organization in the B-3 Central
Business District.

Vice Chairperson Jennifer Duncan reopened the public hearing. The petitioner then gave a presentation on
the item. Katriina McGuire, Thompson Coburn LLP, stated that in December 2019 the Village approved
adult use cannabis sales and commenced in January 2020, McGuire stated that PharmaCann has the
opportunity to expand its current location at 161 S. meolnwa‘y and they are requesting approval for the
proposed expansion. Bill McMenamy, Chief Revenue Officer of PharmaCann, stated that they have evolved
their business into a reservation system to access the d1spensary Customers are able to shop online and
make a reservation to pick up their products Access is allowed in the dispensary five minutes before the
reservation time and the transaction is cancelled if the customer does not arrive within an hour of their
reservation. They have also automated their payment system to include more convenient options by using
digital payments. These changes have allowed the dispensary to operate more efficiently.

McMenamy explained that they are not expanding for expansion purposes but rather to improve the
experience. They plan on having ten (10) register stations which is a 40% increase of where they are today.

This will move customers through the line much more quickly and also accommodate the needs of
customers who require more time. The proposed expansion will also include an online order processing
area since that is where most of the work is occurring. The footprint of the vault will also be expanded. The
expanded space will include a break room and general manager office. Toth stated that PharmaCann did
receive a special use approval in 2019 for recreational sales and the petitioner is seeking special use
approval on the proposed expansion. Staff does recommend approval with three (3) conditions. There are
dumpster corrals on site but the south facing fagade does not have gates, which will need to be installed per
the first condition. The second condition states that refuse should not accumulate so that it is visible outside
or above the height of the enclosure. The third condition states that the property owner shall regularly
monitor all on-site parking conditions to ensure adequate parking for all business tenants at all times.

There were no public comments. Jennifer Duncan then closed the public portion of the hearing.



NEW BUSINESS

1. Petition #20-08 (307 Banbury Road): The petitioner, Marcos Rodriguez, requests the following
actions on the subject property located in the R-1 Single Family Residence District:

1) Special use to allow for the expansion of a Place of Worship
2) Site Plan Approval

Commissioner Holbrook stated that she did not have any questions.
Commissioner Botkin stated that he had no further questions.
Commissioner Anderson stated that he had no further questions.

Commissioner Tom Lenkart asked if anyone from the Village has reviewed the parking agreement between
Schneider Elementary School and Chapelstreet Church. Paloian responded that there is currently an
informal agreement between the two parties. The fornial agreement is still being drafted and will be
recorded once finalized. Schneider currently uses the church’s parking lot for pick up and drop off. The
petitioner would like to reciprocate and use Schneider’s lot for overflow parking when necessary. This will
be addressed in a formal agreement that can be shared with the Village. Toth responded that the site exceeds
the parking requirement. Lenkart asked if there was a plan‘to open a school in the future since there are
numerous classrooms. Paloian responded that there is no plan to open a school at this time. The classrooms
are meant for children’s ministry ranging from all ages. Lenkart stated he had no further questions.

Chairman Mike Brackett stated he had no further questions.

Motion for approval of a special use to allow for the expansion of a Place of Worship with one condition,
made by Commissioner Lenkart and seconded by Commissioner Botkin. Vote: Holbrook — Yes, Lenkart —
Yes, Anderson — Yes, Duncan — Yes, Brackett — Yes, Botkin — Yes. Motion approved.

Motion for approval of the site plan made by Commissioner Lenkart and seconded by Commissioner
Holbrook. Vote: Holbrook — Yes, Lenkart — Yes, Anderson — Yes, Duncan — Yes, Brackett — Yes, Botkin
— Yes. Motion approved.

Vice Chairperson Jennifer Duncan then reopened the public hearing.

2. Petition #20-09 (161 S. Lincolnway): The petitioner, PharmaCann, LLC, requests a special use to
allow for the expansion of an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization in the B-3 Central
Business District.

Chairman Brackett asked how the online ordering will affect customer walk-ins or if someone wants to add
on to their online order. McMenamy responded that a customer can always add on to their order that has
already been placed online. He stated that enough slack has been built into the system so they can pivot in
just about any direction. They would prefer that customers use the app because it allows them to keep the
menu as accurate as possible. Brackett asked if online customers can pay in cash. McMenamy responded
that customers do pay in cash and it is still the number one payment method in the dispensary. Brackett
asked if PharmaCann is still considering to move their location in the future. McMenamy responded that
their goal is to improve the current footprint. Jeremy Unruh, Senior Vice President of Public and Regulatory
Affairs of PharmaCann, stated that under the governor’s reading of the statute regarding relocation of
medical dispensaries, an existing medical dispensary is not allowed to relocate to another location where
adult-use cannabis will be sold. The governor is not approving any requests to relocate any existing medical




use facilities at this time. Village Administrator Steve Bosco stated that the Village does monitor legislation
that has an affect at a local level and the State will be discussing relocation of existing medical cannabis
facilities in the near future. Brackett stated he is concerned about the parking monitoring and security of
the facility once the expansion takes place. Toth responded that it was a condition of the original ordinance
and parking monitoring is being implemented as a condition for this request as well. Brackett stated he had
no further questions.

Commissioner Lenkart asked if the process for purchasing medical cannabis is the same as for recreational.
McMenamy responded that the mechanism for purchasing is pretty similar. The recreational customer
prefers to remain anonymous whereas the medical customer’s information is recorded with the state and
their medical card has to be scanned at the reception area. A recreational customer must show their proper
identification but their information does not get recorded with the state. Lenkart asked if they are required
to have an appointment. McMenamy responded that medical customers are not required to have an
appointment, but many of them do so they can conveniently shop ahead of time. Lenkart asked if there has
been less traffic and issues with parking at the facility. Toth responded that he has not heard of any incidents
or problems. Brackett stated that the parking is better and the monitoring seems to be working. Lenkart
asked if the online reservation system was created more so because of COVID-19 or to eliminate the excess
flow of customers. McMenamy responded that it was implemented solely to make the experience better.
Lenkart stated he had no further questions.

Commissioner Anderson asked how many existing registers they currently have. McMenamy responded
that they currently have six (6) registers and with COVID‘Sl_Q__requirements, they only operate four (4).
Anderson asked if they are increasing the reception area square footage and how much of an increase are
they proposing for the sales floor area. McMenamy responded that they are repurposing the sales floor to
move around the registers in a lineal fashion. The reception area will remain pretty similar to how it is
today. Anderson asked if the primary purpose of the expansion is to move people in and out at a faster rate.
McMenamy responded that the purpose is to provide a better experience through a faster and more efficient
transaction for the customer. This will allow the dispensary to accommodate more transactions on a daily
basis. Anderson stated that he thinks it will bring more bodies into the actual sales floor of the dispensary,
which he does not understand how . that makes for a better experience. McMenamy responded that
transactions can be handled more quickly with the online orders and reservations. A system similar to the
one being proposed was already implemented at the Romeoville location and it has proven to be successful.
Anderson stated he had no other questions.

Commissioner Botkin asked if a recreational customer can still purchase from the dispensary without an
online order or reservation. McMenamy stated that the staff would redirect the customer back to the
reservation system and educate them on how it works so they can purchase their product that way. Their
staff is always available to answer any questions or walk the customer through the process. Botkin stated
he had no further questions.

Commissioner Holbrook stated she had no further questions.

Motion for approval of a special use to allow for the expansion of an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing
Organization with three (3) conditions, made by Commissioner Anderson and seconded by Commissioner
Lenkart. Vote: Holbrook — Yes, Lenkart — Yes, Anderson — Yes, Duncan — Yes, Brackett — Yes, Botkin —
Yes. Motion approved.

OLD BUSINESS — None

PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND PROJECT UPDATES




Commissioner Botkin asked if Blue Agave restaurant was currently open. Toth responded that he was
unsure of their COVID-19 hours of operation. Botkin stated he drove by recently one evening and it was
closed. Bosco responded that they went to the Village Board for liquor license approval recently. Botkin
stated he called the restaurant and it just rang. Brackett stated that Hammer & Stain closed down in the
same shopping center.

Toth stated that the developer for Forest Ridge Townhomes is still working on the site plan and has not
gone back to Village Board yet. At Orchard Commons, Fortunata and the micro-brewery have been
approved by Village Board.

Toth announced that as of now, there will be a Plan Commission Meeting in January, which will include
the Valley Green Golf Course development. Brackett asked if it included the Slaker property. Toth
responded that as of right now the development includes the Valley Green Golf Course and part of the
Euclid property. Holbrook asked if North Aurora really needs'more warehouses. Toth responded that 70%
of the inquiries he gets are about potential warehouses. The comprehensive plan does show that area as
office / industrial. Lenkart stated that warehouses fill up quite quickly so the use is in demand. Toth stated
that the golf course is currently in the Route 31 TIF District, so there is appreciable amount of potential
once the properties are built and assessed. Bosco stated that industrial buildings benefit the school districts
because they pay a significant amount of property taxes to the school district.

ADJOURNMENT 5 _
Motion to adjourn made by Commissioner Lenkart. All in favor. Motion approved.

Respectfully Submitted,

Natalie Stevens
Deputy Village Clerk




STAFF REPORT TO THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA PLANNING COMMISSION
FROM: MIKE TOTH, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

GENERAL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: January 5, 2021
Petition Number: #21-01

Petitioner: Josh Bauer -
OPUS Development Company, LLC

Location: 314 Kingswood Dr. &
200 Overland Dr.

Property Index Numbers:
15-04-351-017, -020 & -024

Development Size: 67.15 acres

Requests: 1) Map Amendment to establish the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial Zoning
District (Golf Course Property) 2) Special Use - Planned Unit Development with deviations to the
Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances 3) Site Plan Approval 4) Preliminary Final Plat

Current Zoning: R-1 Single Family Residence District (Golf Course Property) & O-R-1 Office,
Research and Light Industrial District

Contiguous Zoning: North: R-1 Single Family Residence District, South: O-R-I Office, Research and
Light Industrial District, East: R-1 Single Family Residence District (vacated BNSF Right-of-Way),
West: I-2 General Industrial District

Current Land Use: Golf Course & Vacant Land
Comprehensive Plan Designation: ‘Office/Industrial’

PROPOSAL

OPUS Development Company, LLC is proposing a 1,056,811 square foot two-phased, three-building
speculative industrial development on the 67.15 acres that comprise the Valley Green Golf Course site
and the vacant land located to the west of (and currently owned by) Euclid Beverage on Overland
Drive. The development would provide approximately 694 passenger parking spaces (354 land banked
spaces for future use) and approximately 279 trailer parking spaces. Access to the development will be
provided via two full access drives off Overland Drive. The developers are labeling this project the
‘Opus [-88 Corporate Park’.



Staff Report
Petition #21-01
Page 2 of 5

REQUESTED ACTIONS

Map Amendment to establish the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial Zoning District
Building A (Phase 1) would be built on land located in the O-R-1 Office, Research and Light Industrial
District. The proposed Warehousing, Storage, and Distribution Facility use of the land is classified as a
permitted use in the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial District. Buildings B (Phase 1) and C
(Phase 2) would be built on the Valley Green Golf Course site, which is currently located in the R-1
Single Family Residence District. The proposed Warehousing, Storage, and Distribution Facility use of
the land is prohibited in the R-1 Single Family Residence District. As such, the petitioner is requesting a
map amendment (“rezoning”) to change the zoning of the Valley Green Golf Course to the O-R-I Office,
Research and Light Industrial District where the use is classified as a permitted use.

According to the Zoning Ordinance, the purpose of the O-R-I Office and Light Industrial Research
District is to provide for the grouping of office, research and light industrial uses compatible in scope
of services and methods of operation. As noted, a portion of the development would be built in the
O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial District, which is currently located in the Tollway Park of
Commerce, a business park that consists primarily of other Warehousing, Storage, and Distribution
Facility uses.

The Comprehensive Plan designates the properties within the proposed development area as
‘Office/Industrial” which would be consist with the proposed Warehousing, Storage, and Distribution
Facility use of the properties.

Special Use —Planned Unit Development with deviations

Per Section 17.5.4 of the Zoning Ordinance, any nonresidential or multiple-family parcel, or parcels of
land two acres or more in size shall be required to be a planned unit development. The total site area
for the proposed development is 67.15 acres and Warehousing, Storage, and Distribution Facility is
deemed to be a nonresidential use. As previously mentioned, the use is classified as a permitted use in
the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial District.

For reference purposes, the following table illustrates the yard and bulk regulations of the O-R-I
Office, Research and Light Industrial District:

) Zoning District
Yard & Bulk Regulations
O-R-1 Proposed
BULK REGULATIONS
Building A = 6.59 acres
Lot Area, Minimum 2 acres Building B = 33.77 acres

Building C = 26.79 acres

Building A = 342°
Lot Width, Minimum 150 ft. Building B = 70’ '
i Building C =n/a
Building A = 38°10”
Building Height, Maximum 50 ft. Building B = 43’
| Building C =n/a




Staff Report
Petition #21-01

Page 3 of 5
?Floor Area Ratio (FAR), Maximum | None n/a
' Building A = 37%
Lot Coverage, Maximum 60% Building B =37%
Building C =35%
YARD REGULATIONS
Front Yard, Minimum [ 30 ft. All buildings in conformance
Front Yard, Minimum ]'[ 100 £t “
- Abutting Residential District ’
Rear Yard, Minimum 20 ft. “
| Rear Yard, Minimum - B
- Abutting Residential District ’
" Interior Side Yard, Minimum | 15 f. «
Interior Side Yard, Minimum 30 fi «
- Abutting Residential District |
Corner Side Yard, Minimum 30ft. B

Landscaping Trees (Zoning Ordinance Deviation Required)

Section 14.5.B.3 of the Zoning Ordinance requires shade trees to be provided for manufacturing,
warehouse and distribution developments at a minimum of one tree per one thousand (1,000) square
feet of total lot area, minus the area of the building. According to the submitted landscape plan, there
is 528,245 square feet of on-lot landscaping area (area exclusive of building, improved surfaces and
detention ponds) that comprises the entirety of the development. 528 trees are being proposed, which
is one tree per 1,000 square feet of available site area. As the aforementioned landscape provision
specifically states, “minus the area of the building”, the Zoning Ordinance is unclear as to whether
other manmade improvements (parking lots, drive aisles, detention ponds) are excluded from the
available site area.

Lot Width (Zoning Ordinance Deviation Required)

The Zoning Ordinance defines Lot Width as the minimum horizontal distance between the side lot
lines of a lot measured at the required front yard setback line. The front yard setback in the O-R-I
District is 30 feet. While the actual lot dimensions for all three lots is considerably large, the access
point for Building B on Overland Drive would be 70 feet in width where 150 feet is required per the
O-R-I District. That portion of the property is not intended to accommodate a building, but rather the
access drive that eventually leads to all of the properties.

Loading Space Orientation (Zoning Ordinance Deviation Required)

Section 14.11.B of the Zoning Ordinance requires loading spaces in all zoning districts to be located
and oriented so as not to be visible from the street and adjacent properties, while still allowing access
to the use it is serving. The loading spaces associated with Building A are only located on north
building fagade whereas the south building fagade faces Overland Drive. The loading spaces for
Buildings B & C are located on the north and south fagade as those buildings are cross-dock
warchouse buildings. As the properties to the north, south and west are already developed it would be
impossible for the loading spaces to not be oriented, and subsequently visible, from an adjacent



Staff Report
Petition #21-01
Page 4 of 5

property. The petitioner has provided an exhibit that illustrates the distance from Buildings A & B to
be in excess of 500 feet from the residential properties to the north.

In addition, loading spaces in all zoning districts shall be screened as much as possible, unless such
screening is determined unnecessary by the Community Development Director. Such screening shall
consist of a solid wood fence, masonry screen wall or slatted chain link fence to a height of not less
than six feet or a continuous evergreen or dense deciduous shrub hedge, or a combination.

A continuous hedge of trees and shrubs currently line the north property line of the golf course. In
order to preserve and bolster the natural landscape buffer, additional clusters of evergreen trees would
be installed (at a minimum height of six feet) where any gaps in the hedge exist. As some of the
existing trees between the buildings and north property line may be lost to the built environment and
detention ponds, priority of new trees was emphasized between the buildings and the north property
line.

Lot Frontage
Section 12.1.C of the Zoning Ordinance ‘Frontage on a Public or Private Street’, requires all zoning

lots to front on a public street, unless otherwise approved as a planned unit development. Per the
submitted plans Buildings A and B would have direct frontage on Overland Drive; however, Building
C would not have direct frontage on Overland Drive. Building C would take access through Building
B’s access drive to Overland Drive. Staff notes that the proposed development would be approved as
part of a planned unit development; as such, Building C would have the ability to take access though
Building B’s access drive.

Sanitary Sewer Extension (Subdivision Ordinance Deviation Required)

Section 16.12.150.C of the Subdivision Ordinance requires sanitary sewers to be extended to the
property lines of the tract under development at the developer's expense, sized to provide sanitary
service to the limit of the projected service area - with no recapture. With the exception of the
proposed development’s eastern boundary, the subject property is surrounded by property that has
been already been developed. Staff reviewed the area utilities with the Public Works Department and
determined that an extension of sanitary sewer would not be necessary given the availability of
existing infrastructure.

Site Plan Approval

Per Section 17.4.4(B) of the Zoning Ordinance, site plan review shall be required for each building
permit application for multi-family, townhouse, commercial, and industrial development for which a
site plan has not already been approved.

Preliminary Final Plat of Subdivision

A Plat of Subdivision, known as the Preliminary Plat of Subdivision for Valley Green Subdivision, is
being proposed to establish the Opus I-88 Corporate Park as three separate lots. Lot 1 would consist of
6.59 acres and include Building A. Lot 2 would consist of 34.73 acres and include Building B. Lot 3
would consist of 27.43 acres and include Building C. The Plat also contains stormwater management
and access easements to allow the three lots to function as one unified development.



Staff Report
Petition #21-01
Page 5 of 5

FINDINGS

The Community Development Department finds that the information presented meets the Standards
for Map Amendments, Specials Uses, Site Plan Review and Planned Unit Developments as set forth in
the Zoning Ordinance. Based on the above considerations, staff recommends that the Plan
Commission make the following motion recommending approval of Petition #21-01, subject to the
following conditions:

1.

10.

11.

12.

Site plan review (non-public hearing) shall be obtained from the Plan Commission and Village
Board prior to building permit issuance for Building C.

A separate building permit shall be required for each guardhouse so the Village may work with
the petitioner to validate the optimal location of each guardhouse in order to avoid any
potential impact on site circulation.

All business activities shall be conducted completely within the confines of the buildings.

A photometric plan shall be submitted and approved by the Village prior to building permit
issuance.

Any tree of good quality larger than six inches in diameter when measured twelve (12) inches
above the ground, which are not located within fifteen (15) feet of or within a building
footprint, within the road footprint or in those areas listed Section 16.12.010.C.3.a of the
Subdivision Ordinance, shall be tagged by the petitioner and evaluated by the Village for
preservation.

The hedge of trees and shrubs currently located along the north property line of the golf course
shall be preserved to the greatest extent possible to maintain natural landscape buffering.

Vehicular access shall be limited to Overland Drive with restricted emergency access at
Willow Way.

All motor vehicles, including trucks, shall be prohibited from parking or idling in any area
designated as a truck or car bypass lane.

On-site management shall effectively monitor and regulate all on-site trucking activities in
order to minimize any light, sound or odor emissions.

Construction traffic shall be limited to Overland Drive with restricted emergency access at
Willow Way.

Construction traffic shall not impede on the ability of the Village and Fire Protection District to
provide emergency services.

All dumpsters located on the subject property shall be screened per Section 14.11.A of the
Zoning Ordinance.



@ OPUS

VALLEY GREEN GOLF COURSE REDEVELOPMENT

PROJECT NARRATIVE

Opus I-88 Corporate Park (“Project”) is a proposed two (2) phased, three (3) building industrial
development project located on 67.15 acres of land in North Aurora, Illinois. Phase | consists of two (2)
buildings, a 543,638 square foot cross-dock building on 33.77 acres and a 104,978 square foot rear-load
building on 6.59 acres. Phase Il is a planned 408,195 square foot cross-dock building on 26.79 acres.

The Project is located in the I-88 corridor, a highly sought after transportation and logistics market which
attracts both bulk industrial users as well as local users with smaller footprints. Opus I-88 Corporate Park
is located 1.5 miles northwest of I-88 and the Route 31 full four-way interchange, north of Airport Road
and just west of Route 31, a major north/south thoroughfare.

The Project is designed to accommodate multiple tenants in muitiple size ranges. Building A, a 104,978
square foot rear-load building contemplates up to two (2) tenants ranging from 30,000 SF to 70,000 SF,
however the building is a great option for single-tenant users as well. Building B is a 543,638 square foot
cross-dock building that is designed to accommodate up to two (2) users, but is also a great option for a
large single-tenant user. Building B is designed with multi-tenant flexibility by integrating a second
tenant truck/car bypass road for users requiring a secured truck court / trailer parking. Phase I
contemplates a 408,195 square foot cross-dock building to be constructed after Building B has been
leased. Phase Il land also provides flexibility to expand Building B to pursue up to 1M square foot users.

The combination of the Project’s location within a relatively land constrained submarket, availability of
labor, quality construction, and convenient highway access will provide tremendous appeal to tenants
looking to establish a local and/or regional distribution center.

The properties are encumbered by limited wetland issues, including both jurisdictional and non-
jurisdictional wetlands, as well as environmental contamination. Wetland determinations have been
submitted to USACE for concurrence with our findings. Our Phase Il environmental report required that
we work through the IEPA voluntary cleanup program. Our environmental team is fully engaged with us
and we are working to obtain a no further action letter prior to closing on the sites.

We look forward to working with the Village of North Aurora on this exciting new project.
Sincerely,
Josh Bauer

Senior Manager
Opus Development Company, L.L.C.



APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA PETITION NO. 21-61
Board of Trustees
25 East State Street FILENAME  \awes Goasm Dsus iopmsns

North Aurora, IL 60542

L

IL

DATE STAMP

APPLICANT AND OWNER DATA

Name of Applicant UZSR R auer
Applicant Address {700 lhg:mv; Roaj suie 900 , Resemonh . it 600I3
Applicant Telephone # 8411 - 319 -)p24
Email Address Tosh. B auwr € opus - 7 0op. Camt
LS e R TU L
Property Owner(s) Emmetr  Me ij' e Mickel Dovylis o¢ Tusk Golt twe ""I‘:,,,,w
Owner Address Dl
Owner Telephone #

ADDRESS, USE AND ZONING OF PROPERTY

Address of Property 314 K1A5Ws0d pruy, aorth oy I AD ouer b b nw , herdh Quewm, 1L

(indicate location if no common ‘address)

Legal Description: __See  addathen

Parcel Size 3\4 kma’m~ Lo-5% Pery / T owran Dawe s L.59 awvys

Present Use 3\\ Konywosd * Golé (onsce / T guedan) Pron’, Vacant fand
) (business, manufacturing, residential, etc.)

Present Zoning District 34 winqwed’. R -\ / TSy ouwrlesd DML O -R-1
(Zoning Ordinance Classification)

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019

Page 1 of 6



III.

PROPOSED SPECIAL USE

Proposed Special Use © = Q-

(Zoning Ordinance Classification)

Code Section that authorizes Special Use Tide 17 - Wl"}é‘,,,ﬁ/ Y - Seehnq 4.3 (S&u'v( vie)
Has the present applicant previously sought to rezone or request a special use for the property or
any part thereof? N0

If so, when? NJ P to what district? NI A

Describe briefly the type of use and improvement proposed

_Tedostna|  wouchoesiy anl Meafiuy iy

What are the existing uses of property within the general area of the Property in question?
0- K- Twwina)  Lauliy
R-1° s Wy le —(1'“’((1

To the best of your knowledge, can you affirm that there is a need for the special use at the

particular location? (Explain) Yes., 2\ eordr 4o obduyin & MA ameninvat 4
deotdet Mt emraha, e vehdungs will regowe 4 specd ve

Attach hereto a statement with supporting data that the proposed special use will conform

to the following standards:

1. The proposed special use is, in fact, a special use authorized in the zoning district in which
the property is located.

2. The proposed special use is deemed necessary for the public convenience at that location.
3. The proposed special use does not create excessive additional impacts at public expense for
public facilities and services, and will be beneficial to the economic welfare of the

community.

4. The proposed use is in conformance with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan,
and all Village codes and regulations.

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019

Page 2 of 6



v

5. The proposed special use will be designed, located, operated, and maintained so as to be
harmonious and compatible in use and appearance with the existing or intended character of
the general vicinity.

6. The proposed special use will not significantly diminish the safety, use, enjoyment, and value
of other property in the neighborhood in which it is located.

7. The proposed special use is compatible with development on adjacent or meighboring
property.

8. The proposed special use minimizes potentially dangerous traffic movements, and provides
adequate and safe access to the site.

9. The proposed special use provides the required number of parking spaces and maintains
parking areas, in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance.

10. The proposed special use is served by adequate utilities, drainage, road access, public safety,
and other necessary facilities.

11. The proposed special use conforms with the requirements of this Ordinance and other
applicable regulations.

CHECKLIST FOR ATTACHMENTS

The following items are attached here to and made a part hereof:

1.

2R

Introduction Letter. Please include information relevant to the proposed use of the property
and business operations (hours of operation, number of employees, etc.).

Legal Description of the subject property(s).

Illinois Land Surveyor’s plat of survey.

Site Plan illustrating all existing and proposed improvements.

Statement and supporting data regarding Standards for Special Uses (above).

Filing fee in the amount of $300.00, if paid by check make payable to the Village of North
Aurora.

Specified escrow deposit ($4,000 minimum). May be included with filing fee. Remaining
funds refundable upon project completion.

Visit the Illinois Department of Natural Resources’ website www.dnr.state.il.us and initiate a
consultation using DNR’s EcoCat online application.

Visit the Kane DuPage Soil and Water Conservation District’s website
www.kanedupageswcd.org for a Land Use Opinion Application

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019

Page 3 of 6



The Applicant authorizes the Village of North Aurora representatives to enter on to the property to make
inspection during the hearing process.

The Applicant is responsible for publishing a legal notice in the newspaper, sending United States mail
notices to properties within 250 feet, and posting a sign on the property advertising the public hearing.
These shall be in accordance with village Ordinances at the times decided by the Village of North
Aurora.

The undersigned hereby agrees to reimburse the Village for all costs of court reporter fees for attendance
at and transcript of hearing(s) and other professional service fees for services rendered in connection
with this application as defined in Appendix B of the North Aurora Zoning Ordinance. Such
reimbursement shall be made promptly upon receipt of invoices from the Village, whether or not this
application for special use is approved.

I (we) certify that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents submitted
herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

ij/”' Jo - 13-2020

Apflicant or Authorized Agent Date

Owner Date

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 4 of 6



The Applicant authorizes the Village of North Aurora representatives to enter on to the property to make
inspection during the hearing process.

The Applicant is responsible for publishing a legal notice in the newspaper, sending United States mail
notices to properties within 250 feet, and posting a sign on the property advertising the public hearing.
These shall be in accordance with village Ordinances at the times decided by the Village of North
Aurora.

The undersigned hereby agrees to reimburse the Village for all costs of court reporter fees for attendance
at and transcript of hearing(s) and other professional service fees for services rendered in connection
with this application as defined in Appendix B of the North Aurora Zoning Ordinance. Such
reimbursement shall be made promptly upon receipt of invoices from the Village, whether or not this
application for special use is approved.

I (we) certify that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents submitted
herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief,

Applicant or Authorized Agent Date
e M L O=-"P="0
Owner Date

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 4 of 6



The Applicant authorizes the Village of North Aurora representatives to enter on to the property to make
inspection during the hearing process.

The Applicant is responsible for publishing a legal notice in the newspaper, sending United States mail
notices to properties within 250 feet, and posting a sign on the property advertising the public hearing.
These shall be in accordance with village Ordinances at the times decided by the Village of North
Aurora.

The undersigned hereby agrees to reimburse the Village for all costs of court reporter fees for attendance
at and transcript of hearing(s) and other professional service fees for services rendered in connection
with this application as defined in Appendix B of the North Aurora Zoning Ordinance. Such
reimbursement shall be made promptly upon receipt of invoices from the Village, whether or not this
application for special use is approved.

1 (we) certify that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents submitted
herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

Applicant or Authorized Agent Date
g B Kﬂ%"‘_ﬁ i>/79 /zaa.e)
Owner Date ~

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 4 of 6



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF KANE )

I , being first duly sworn on oath depose

and say that I am trust officer of and that the following are all of the

beneficiaries of the

TRUST OFFICER

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO
Before me this day of , 20

A Notary Public in and for such County

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 5 of 6



Following are the names and addresses of all property owners within 250 feet of the property in
questions for which the special use being is being requested.

TAX PARCEL NO. PROPERTY OWNER MAILING ADDRESS

See allier £ehBit with Pmd W wymiat. Yoty gner ap qu.'.} a sy
& te 5 oetiimnee.

I _ Jesh Barnpr , being first duly sworn on oath certifies that all of the
above statements and the statements contained in any papers or plans submitted herewith are true and

correct,
M %/\ Jo-14-2020

Apgficant Signature Date

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO

Before me this I 4 day of OCZ‘Y)W ,20 A0

Q(/u WV\' OFFICIAL SEAL
EVA J. JOHNS

Notary Public a NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
My Commission Expires 09/15/2022

POY

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 6 of 6



TS0
T¥s09

Tvs09
v509
Ips09
Zp509
2v509
vs09
rs09
Zvs09
Zvs09
w509

ps09

THso9

THs09
Ts09
T¥s09
509
r509
vs09
Y509
T¥S09
Y509
T¥s09
509
s09
509
T¥s09
r609
¥s509
Trs09
Y509
Tys09
¥509
ws09
Zbs09
wso9
vs09
W09
TWs09
Tvs09
TYs09

n

dzays  aeisdys

YHOUNY HLYON
YHOUNY HLEON
YHOUNY HI¥ON
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLYON
YHOUNY HIYON &
VEOUNY HIYON
YHOUNY HLION
VHONNY HINON
VHOUNY HIYON
VHONNY HIYON
VHONNY HINON
VHOANY HIHON
V404NV HIYON
YHOHNY HINON
YHONNY HIYON
VHOUNY HINON
YHOMNY HINON
YHONNY HLNON
VHONNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLMON
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUMY HLHON
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLUON
YHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLION
VHOUNY HLHON
YHOUNY HLHON
VHOUNY HIHON
VHOUNY HLHON
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HIHON
VHONNY H1HQN
VHOUNY H1BON
VUONNY HIHON §
VHOUNY HLHON
VHONNY HLHON
VYOUNY HLHON
VYONNY HLWON
VYOUNY HLEON
VYOMNNY HLEON
VYOUY HLEON
YHOHNY HLYON
V80UNY HLYON
VEOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLHON T
VHOUNY HLHON
VHOUNY HLHON
VHOHNY HLHON
VHONNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOHNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLYON
VH0HNY HLYON 8
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLHON
VYOUNY HLYON
VHOBNY HLYON
VYOENY HLHON
VHOHNY HLYON
WHOHNY HLYON
VIOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLYON
WYOBNY HLYON
VHOBNY HLYON €
VHOUNY HLEON
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLYON
VIOUNY HLYON
VHOMNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLEON T
VHOUNY HLYON
VHOUNY HLION
VHOUNY HLHON
VHOUNY HLYON
YHOUNY HIJON B
VHONNY HLYON
YHOUNY HINON £

9Z-192 (]

TE-6ZE ay

d

M) uawpedy dwep peoy

LHOduy
NOL3IONINd
AVMNIOONN
NOL3IONIHd
AOOMSONIN
NHOr
YVIdOd
*V1dOd
QOOMSONIN
EELIPEL = a]
AOOMSAND
ANYTIYIA0
TIVaNWY
ONVI¥3A0
NOL3DNIdd
ONVI¥3A0
AYMNIODNIT
33YLAYHIHD
yv1dod
FFULAYHIHD
UNVTH3A0
NOLIONI¥d
LHoduv
NOLIONI¥d
QOOMSONDI
ACOMSAND
AOOMSONDI
NOLIONIHd
MOTIM
NOL3SNIYd
NOLIONId
EELIRNE )
LHOdHIv
ONYINIAO
MOTIM
QOOMSONII
uv1dod
¥vad
NOLIDNIYd
NOL3INIYd
NOLIONIYd
HYQ3d
AOOMSONDI
QOOMSONIN
AOOMSDNI
NOL3ONId
HY140d
Hv1dod
Uv1dod
ANVIEEA0
ONVI¥EAO
NOLIININ
TIVaNYH
GOOMSONIN
AYMNITONI
yv1dod
¥v1dod
Yv1dod
NOI3ONINd
NOLIINId
13044V
QOOMSONIN
NOLIDONId
HIMOL ¥ILVM
Hvdod
¥VIdod
¥YdOd
MOTIM
NOLIININd
¥VOd
COOMSDNIA
TGOOMSDONIN
GOOMSDNIA
Y¥¥dOd
NOL3IINiHd
NOLIDNIHJ
NOL3INId
Uvdod
YV1dod
ANVIHEAD
Y¥1d0d

1344

£ 9ET
oty
TLE
144
68T
£0Z
6IE

S £

00z
S 0T
00F
Ty

x4
T6T

£3-14
ot
019

¥Ie
LIE

1414

€T

SZE
51€
h143

S6T
68T

108

wy

1133
S 9ET
68T

ToZ

w9
108
fi44
L4

S0z
S6T
68T

(144
58T
143
SOE
€0E
68T
azy
+0S
oty

687
0oz
681

6T-66T-L6T

RN J2ANS  S¥EdWO] JAGUINN JRAS

WIMLSNANI LB
yds

(53N) VIS4INNOD
uds

uis

{23N) TVIDHINNOD
TVILLSNONI LHOT
VIMLSNANI LHDIN
His

4§

s

TVIHLSNAN) LHON
LdINIXE XYL
IVIBLSNGNI LHON
uis

IVIBLSMANI LHON
(93N) VINLINDEDY
HdS

TWIMLSNANI LHDM
ui§

IVIMLSNANI LHOI
yds

TYIYLSNANI LHOI
uis

Y38

{23N) TYDHINWOD
yis

s

QGNVT WILNIGISIN- INYOVA
s

us§

uis

TYIYASNIONI LHDIT
IVIYLSNANI LHON
ui§

(03N} WDHIWWOD
YILLSNANI 1HOIT
uis

uds

uis

uis

uis

45

uis

Yds

¥ds

WIHLSNAN] HD1T
IVILSNANI LHDI
IWRILSNANI LHON
TYIISNAN] LHDI
143X XVL

His

(23N} VIDHINWOD
His

23N} TvunLINDILEY
TVINLSNAN] IHD1
TVIMISNAN) LHDI
TVRLISTION] LHBI
1dN3X3 XVL

445

TVRLSNIANI LHOI
uds

uss

1dW3XE XL
TVIMLSNANI LHBI
WIHLSNANI LHBIN
IVIMLSNGNI HDI
435

s

‘IVINLSNANI LHON
uis

s

uds

WIHLSNANI LHON
45

uis

s

LdWEE XYL
VIHLSNONI LS
TVISLSNANI -GNYT LNVOVA
WIHLSNIONI LHON
snpue

17 11 ANIWLSIANI TYRILSNANI 1SHI
AHdUNW Hi3gvzNn3

02 NOSIQ3 HLIYIMNOWWOD
T3MITdIOd SITIAHd '8 GIAVD
NNYWHTT IV

SS§ VAINID 40 HNVE 2LVLS
Y3IHLOY 1aVHIIN

OT130V1d ¥V1dOd £0Z

Z3HINVY NOWYY '8 OYANVITIV
YAVINOW OLN3IBOY

LLvy¥3a3 Nviue

QL7 SIONITI 40 S3SIIdHALNI LINWNS
40 FDVTIIA VHOUNY HLYON

71 3AI4A ANVIH3AO 00T

00D VIHLNAD B QiAva

O ALIWIY dS

ANAWVE HDIVTS LYIA0H B YIS
VZv¥a3d YN(139NY

71 53IHISNANI 17 W

131909 TAMIHD

ANLO0d 8 LHIBOH B NVLNOdOUIIN
NOL3INRd 079 S3143S D11 S3LLHIHOHd LVA
NOLLYIDOSSY SHINMO FOHIWINDI 40 XUYd AVMTIOL
SYOUVA INVIQ B STYONY

DJ2QU0 NvANE

ONI 324314 '3 TIHEdNYD

4135 210 '8 HSMONE Hllant
ZZHONVS ViV

AVMUVY 34 VANVS B NYIHLYON NOLONITUNG
dd3¥ NATIAZ B QUYMQH
05093840 AUVINISOH

ZNYD snsar

11T MWAN ¥3Lidnr 340D
OT1SLNIWLSIANI ALVYLS3 Tvad NaTIV
Y3WIQNYE VYV B NOSYING

02 NOSKI3 HLTYAMNOWWOD)
AVAVZS M3YaNY

L13INENS ¥SSN3N

XSMOQVS HIINNAX

NONNYD HVHvS

ONNOA YNNIBOD 8 1nVd
OTIVEVHYD HOLDIA B SIAIY VHINVA
NVHOIAL NVSAS 8 diava

NY300718 V14330 3 Hd3sOr
SODVIS NOUVHS

Q134 ADNVN

SI193Y T10JIN

ONISAIL3dOud IS B A

71 DYId H¥1dOd €0Z

4410M QIAva

ALMOHLNY SNVHL D3H AIQ SNE NYRYNENS 30Vd
NOSNHOM INILSINHD

02 NOSIO3 HLIVAMNOWINDD

VSO VidYIN 3 SYOUVA NVAVYE
ATIAVA HDIVIS LH3E0Y B AAVIS
Y3INYEIO YNHSO!

mo9tT

ONINVIN GA 3 NYILSIM SONIYAS
40 I9VITIA VIQUNY HLYON

NOSN3% Yxv

AAIMNNEA YET

Zv0 ZANDIUNA

QHYHILISA NIUvY

40 39VTTIA YHOUNY HLEON

711 30V1d ¥¥1dOd SOZ

51934 F10DIN

Y3HLOH TAVHIIN

SNIALLS Ad3nE

YINOS ATHITWIN B AI¥3

SID3Y 310N

HINVLYX ISINVHDL B VIZ

VNIGIW AHL0HOQ

SONIWIAIND QUYHIIY

S S3143S 071 S3LLH3OUd NI AVLS
NONNVH 13INva

ANVIHO 3JINVT '3 ATYNOY

NY1H T08VI @ NHOT

LOIELSIA NHVd ASTIVA XOd

AVAVZS M3YANY

QL7 SIONITT 4O 53SIYdYILNG LIANINS
AZ10IH NVOT

AWeNBUMD

SZO-TOF+#0-ST
€00-082-50-ST
EOO-TOV-+0-ST
B00-TOE-#O-ST
SZ0-9ZE-40-ST
TOC-9S2PO-ST
POO-BL¥-S0-ST
Or0-00F-50-5T
TZ0-9ZE-PO-ST
200-9ZE-¥0-ST
LZ09TEFO-ST
DZ0-TSE-¥O-ST
650-00%-50-ST
ETO-TSEO-ST
OT0-TOE+0-ST
TZO-TSE-HO-ST
TZO-Ta¥-40-ST
ST0-T0E-+0-5T
VYEQ-00b-S0ST
£00-9Z€-40-5T
TZ0-TSE-¥0-ST
T00-08Z-50-5T
VEO-TOF¥0-5T
Z00-TOE-¥0-ST
920-9Ze40-5T
Y2O-TSE-4O-ST
TZ0-9ZE-bOST
STO-T0E-40-ST
STO-TSE-PO-ST
600-TOE-v0-ST
$O0-TOE-PO-ST
LTO-TOE-$0-ST
TZO-TOP-bO-ST
ET0-ZSE-0-ST
ZEO-9TE-PO-ST
TOO-TSE-+0-5T
SO0-BLE-SO-ST
900-5ST-#0-5T
TIO-TOE-+0-ST
¥00-08Z-50-5T
Z00-0BZ-S0-ST
9TO-TOE-HO-ST
BT0-9ZE-0-ST
€20-9Z€-¥0-ST
0Z0-9Ze-+0-ST
¥T0-TO0E-bO-ST
LE0-007-50-5T
TO0-BLb-S0-ST
S00-00p-50-ST
800-TSE-bO-ST
AT0-T5E-40-ST
£00-TOE-10-ST
TO0-00t-S0-ST
P20-9ZE-bO-ST
YLO-TSE-+O-ST
900-8LY-50-5T
#£0-00t-50-ST
6€0-007-50-ST
TOO-TOEFO-ST
S00-08Z-S0-ST
TIO-ZSE-p0-ST
L10-9Z+40-ST
900-TOE-0-ST
TO0-TSE-YO-ST
900-00b-50-ST
S€0-00-50-ST
€00-8LY-S0ST
EEO0-9ZE-FO-ST
ZI0-TOE-40-ST
9E0-00F-S0-ST
6TO-9ZE-¥O-ST
8TO-9TE-PO-ST
620-9ZE-pO-ST
200-8Lp-50-5T
S00-TOE-¥0-ST
€00-TOE-+0-ST
ET0-TOE-40-ST
€00-TBZ-SO-ST
900-8Lb-50-ST
LT0-TSE-VO-ST
£00-8Lb-50-5T

Nav



BA3IARSS WIJRIRANOD TYNDILYX |
WP GRIDWY 1S |

Aoited Kouaild  een jo sulie) "BOAIBSEI SINDL (Jy 'SSIENUID 51 O/BUY UORRIOTICT) (RIDURULY UBDLIBWY 15114 DZOZE)

S5} oS iy Adusly s el Vs NG

S

aaosdun sn djagy

9 6 1L 6L .
.-.“

*'piomAay ‘uosiad ‘sseuppe saquinu Japio Aq yosess ) = ] hu_._m_u a

0o
@ e mHN» D a4 2w

ipreas-Auadoidiwonisiyies 8 9 S

-+ b3 Yau1eag Auadold | snghwe)d E X wfiong - Aunos ) wicing o €3



DARY HERALD secTion 5 PAGE 7
business & service ottt ducery v

30 p.m. {directory

THE DALY HERLD
CLASSIHEDS

TAKE ADVANTAGE OF

FIRSY IME
ADVERTISERS
DISCOUNT

RECEIVE 25%

30a.m. -4

1,00 or ot §47-427-4671 tows:M ~ F 8

to be

9
c
“
@
a
2
)
@

ALL REPAIRS

aning

Gutter Cle

40 meviow this Aol Stalmnart of Aflake sheudd pontact:

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS SUMMARY FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE

Capies ol the tatalied A Btat e of Aftals kor the Facal Ywr Ending Juns 30, 20211

legal notices

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 1}, 2020

3
.
=
=
2

5

g5=Ss =

5 £§

Sleklsle 8

= = =

(=) =]

..."ﬁ =% P
EBIM&MMmm um
Sebpriaes | | =
SoglESlzsiEn | | &2
of mMmam 25
==Ol="|5&F> =
SeaeslET Sw g
T B2 =
L SalgTiELTo 2B
we e S5 525

— =
ST

= ElS[Gelglalal 3

25 mnC" B Ul

a5 TP EEE =

ns SEgEg =

ogl=2 35 sTSSS| 5

EolgE e o=~ =

S§ElEsE3=slEs S

SSGe=geSs a
gHE pas B
W&mmmmm.mh—umﬂnwmm
Rzt
T mmm
EEey
2
&5

o A

& MM :
gEEey m
fAtH - -
ﬂ

v mﬂ“ -

210 Covington Orivs, learringsinle i 00100

Sehool et ot Agreome Neme
tabamy
ey

o
L

178580 226440

REiLT-) una

1marn
1.795.00

128138

Axe.n2

290250
Graun

°

.o oo

cocooe

102284 LTI

T8

L
1100000 LI4ITR

188747

L
10H5R Ny

SALARY SCHEDULE OF GROSS PAYMENTS FOR CERTIFIGATED PERSONNEL AND NON-CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

Ending Furd Balmoss June 39, 2920 wsua

.
MMW mmemmm

Hhil
mmmmm

mnmmmm

Joosen, o oo, Kre E

-.n.._ A e,

iyl

:

w-m

ainienance

i}

Heme

it

wnmmm.mm

wmmu

mmMm_mm

mwnmﬂhmmm

mWhmmmMmmuMmmmmm_ _

:
Prisbe,

G Bare

hk"""

mmmmmwmmm n

mmmm&u

e
u-v"'- :

Jengmry 4.

M&

Hij
it

m
%m

%mmm

WMM mmm it
i i
wam it
Jjleigi
Sl mm
m MAMWM«M.MMM nmmu
WM“MM wﬁwwmw“
mmmmm MWH_W
it sty
ikl “mhmb
Mmmmmumnu i
£ M_ §it
it mmm
.mm hﬂmmmu

rh
mw
itk
Mm
MMMM

P4

mr
wa

m

I

tive r- Chidw 1584120

Mnmwmmmw

§

315850

i
rw

| Kt M Frambes. Danstte R Frxr Corm:

8

A

Decarimani
‘commen)

-l

o

x
r

M B
v

1N
n
2

Y
iy

o

it

"
=

Jd
ﬁ%ﬁhﬁ
s
Um

E

%

i

==

o hom been Mo

E‘h IN TOL
e

9t de¥ of Dicamber, 420,
mE.’J-a_

Thls
R

Sk

iy

I
THE

=

s e

e

AlLY HE

-t
B

i



PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION

EUCLID BEVERAGE (TBD @ Overland Drive)

PARCEL 1:
THAT PART OF LOT 2 IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE LYING WESTERLY OF THE WESTERLY LINE

OF LOT 1 OF TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE RESUBDIVISION NUMBER 3, IN THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:
THAT PART OF LOT 1 IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE RESUBDIVISION NO. 1 LYING EASTERLY

AND NORTHEASTERLY OF THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 1, IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE
RESUBDIVISION NUMBER 2, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.



PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION

VALLEY GREEN GOLF COURSE

PARCEL 1:

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH,
RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF
SAID QUARTER, 175.02 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN ANGLE OF 85
DEGREES, 40 MINUTES, 0 SECONDS TO THE LEFT WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4
100.29 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH PARALLEL WITH SAID WEST LINE
200 FEET; THENCE WEST AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE 100 FEET TO THE
WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO A POINT 20
FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE
EASTERLY ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 90 DEGREES, 32 MINUTES, 0 SECONDS TO THE
LEFT WITH A PROLONGATION OF THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE 2263.02 FEET TO A POINT OF
CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF
349.26 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 383.68 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE
CHICAGO, BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD COMPANY; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST
LINE 745.27 FEET TO A POINT 390.15 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST
1/4; THENCE WESTERLY IN A DIRECT LINE 2465.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; IN THE
TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER
SECTION 1325.80 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF SAID SOUTHWEST
1/4 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER
SECTION 20 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 89 DEGREES 28
MINUTES TO THE RIGHT WITH THE PROLONGATION OF THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE 2,263.02
FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT
HAVING A RADIUS OF 349.26 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 383.68 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE
RIGHT OF WAY OF THE CHICAGO, BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD COMPANY; THENCE
SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE 190.35 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH
1/2 OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, BEING A LINE FORMING
AN ANGLE OF 89 DEGREES 49 MINUTES TO THE RIGHT WITH THE PROLONGATION OF THE LAST
DESCRIBED COURSE, 2573.67 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF
AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.



1-88 CORPORATE PARK
NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS
APPLICATION FOR:

SPECIAL USE PERMIT



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROJECT SUMMARY
L Introduction
1L Qualifications
111 Description of the Project
Iv. Statement of Conformity



1-88 CORPORATE PARK
PROJECT SUMMARY
APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT
314 Kingswood Drive, North Aurora, Illinois
October 29, 2020

L INTRODUCTION

Opus Development Company, L.L.C., (“Applicant”), is the contract purchaser of the property located
at 314 Kingswood Drive, North Aurora, Illinois (the “Property”), and is the developer of the proposed
industrial buildings (the “Project”). In order to construct and operate the Project, Applicant is applying for
a Special Use Permit to allow for the Project to be developed and operated as described.

This Project Summary, the formal Village Application, the survey, and all other exhibits and
supporting documentation submitted by the Applicant are part of this application for the zoning approval
for the Zoning Request (the “Written Application™). In addition to the Written Application, the further
documentation, studies and testimony of the Applicant, their attorneys, engineers and consultants included
by reference in this application are all part of the Applicant’s specific responses to, and evidence of
satisfaction of, each of the standards, requirements and findings of fact required pursuant to the Code in
connection with the Zoning Request (collectively, the “Application™).

II. QUALIFICATIONS

The Opus Group was founded in 1953 and is actively involved in industrial, senior living, multi-family,
student housing, retail, and office developments. The Opus Group has a national footprint, and services
clients such as Best Buy, Cargill, ConAgra Foods, Hewlett Packard, Nissan and Siemens, and will partner
with Principal Real Estate Investors to ensure the viability and quality of the Project.

The various reports and plans that are being provided as part of this Application are from experts in
their field. To name just a couple of the consultants contributing to this Application, these experts include
the firm KLOA, Inc., which is noted for doing traffic studies and engineering since 1995, representing over
150 years of professional experience, and Jacob & Hefner Associates, Civil Engineering firm, with offices
across the United States, offering full services in a range of disciplines as one of the nation’s premier
planning, engineering and design consulting firms. This dedicated team of consultants, assisting Applicant,
will contribute to the Project being designed, constructed and operated at the highest quality.

IIL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT

Opus 1-88 Corporate Park (“Project” is a two phased, three (3) building industrial speculative
development project located on 67.15 acres of land in North Aurora, Illinois. The first phase of the Project
consists of two (2) buildings, a 543,638 square foot cross-dock building on 33.77 acres and a 104,978 square
foot rear-load building on 6.59 acres (currently zoned O-R-I). The second phase, which will commence
after the stabilization of the 543,638 square foot building in phase one, is a 27 acre parcel that is currently
planned to accommodate a 408,195 square foot cross-dock building.



The first phase of the Project will commence upon land acquisition by Applicant, currently scheduled
for March 2021. Applicant would begin construction immediately on the two (2) buildings in phase I and
scheduled construction completion for both buildings would be December 2021. Estimated stabilization
for the buildings in phase I is June 2023.

The Project will bring significant tax revenue to North Aurora and because this is not a residential use,
the schools, parks, police department and fire department will be minimally impacted. The state of the art
industrial buildings in the planned development will attract high end companies to North Aurora, which
provides potential employment opportunities and shall increase commerce to the already existing
businesses in the community. There will also be minimal added traffic to the surrounding roadways as
Opus I-88 Corporate Park is located only about 1.5 miles from the I-88 and Route 31 four-way interchange.
This limits the distances that the trucks would travel to and from the highway.

The proposed special use shall be a complement to the Village of North Aurora and to the surrounding
area by providing high-end industrial buildings to North Aurora, and shall be properly screened with
deciduous and evergreen trees such that the residents to the north of Kingswood Drive will have very limited
line of sight to the trucks utilizing the buildings. The Village of North Aurora’s Comprehensive Plan
earmarks these properties for O-R-I zoning and industrial development, which is in direct alignment with
the Opus proposed development plans. The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing use and zoning
of nearby properties.

Access from the industrial buildings will be via Overland Drive on the south of the site away from the
residential to the north of the site. From Overland drive, trucks will travel east via Airport Road and then
travel South via Route 31 to get to the I-88 interchange. Access to the industrial buildings will be via the
same route. Total distance from the buildings to the interchange is 1.5 miles.

IV. Statement of Special Use Conformity

The following statement with supporting data shows that the proposed special use will conform to
the following standards:

1. The proposed special use is, in fact, a special use authorized in the zoning district in which the
property is located.
a. Planned Unit Developments are classified as a special use in the O-R-I and R-1
zoning districts.
2. The proposed special use is deemed necessary for the public convenience at that location.
a. This property is an extension of an existing Tollway Park of Commerce Business
Park. The Tollway Park of Commerce land uses consist of similar warehouse
buildings.
3. The proposed special use does not create excessive additional impacts at public expense for
public facilities and services, and will be beneficial to the economic welfare of the community.
a. The proposed project will have a large economic benefit, including job creation,
property tax generation, including a large TIF increment. New job creation can
lead to new retail uses and additional tax generation within the Village of North
Aurora.



10.

The proposed use is in conformance with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan,
and all Village codes and regulations.

a. The Village of North Aurora Comprehensive Plan recommends office/industrial
for all the properties within the development area.

The proposed special use will be designed, located, operated, and maintained so as to be
harmonious and compatible in use and appearance with the existing or intended character of
the general vicinity.

a. The proposed project is simply an extension of the existing Tollway Park of
Commerce, which includes numerous warehouse buildings. We paid particular
attention to the single-family properties to the North, and have provided a very
large buffer to these residences. More specifically, the center of the north face of
Building B is approximately 536 feet from the north side of the Com Ed easement,
and approximately 625 feet from the single-family residences when measuring in
a straight line. The site design pushes buildings to the south to provide the largest
buffer possible.

The proposed special use will not significantly diminish the safety, use, enjoyment, and value
of other property in the neighborhood in which it is located.

a. Passive warchouses are conmsistent with this immediate area. The proposed
industrial use is relatively quiet within the confines of the property and the
specific users will be confined to the buildings.

The proposed special use is compatible with development on adjacent or neighboring property.

a. As mentioned in our answers to question #2 & question #5, this property is an
extension of the Tollway Park of Commerce. The immediately adjacent uses
include similar warehouse uses thus the special use is consistent and compatible
with the development on the adjacent properties.

The proposed special use minimizes potentially dangerous traffic movements, and provides
adequate and safe access to the site.

a. The access to and from this property will be by way of Route 31 intersection at
Airport Road. The development plan contempiates the exact same traffic pattern
that exists today. We have engaged KLOA, a well-respected traffic consultant to
prepare a traffic study which suggests that the proposed development is both safe
from a traffic standpoint and does not change the level of service of the current
roads that provide access to and from the property.

The proposed special use provides the required number of parking spaces and maintains
parking areas, in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance.

a. The proposed site plan exceeds the amount of parking and also provides future
land banked parking should tenants require it.

The proposed special use is served by adequate utilities, drainage, road access, public safety,
and other necessary facilities.

a. Yes. We have already submitted preliminary engineering plans for Village
review, and adequate utilities exist to serve the property. We will also provide
adequate detention both on and off site. A traffic study has been completed that
confirms that access and traffic patterns are safe and remain at the same level of
service that exists today.



11. The proposed special use conforms with the requirements of this Ordinance and other

applicable regulations.
a. The special use is for a Planned Unit Development. The underlying warchouse

uses are a permitted use in the O-R-I district.

Site Plan Review and Planned Unit Development Standards:

Opus Development Company, L.L.C. has reviewed the standards for Planned Unit
Developments, and feel we meet all of the standards that are outlined.



—

= = |

ALTA/NSPS

FAMT G THE LT MALE O

L iNees

The Ty

LAND TITLE SURVEY

AANGE A A1) OF

L=l

eo__8 oo 200
Scale 1" = 50"

BASE OF EARNGS
LLAOS STATE RANE
EAST 20N NADRS (1201)

g‘ LD 1-84% FINCE ROST

g /’ LA™

e /G

POPLLAR PLACE INDUSTRIAL
‘CONDOMINARY PLAT
DOC. 20018902

ml -
2
Eﬁ

i

R T

O

s PARCEL 1

GOLF COURSE

S LN OF T N 1/2 OF THE B 1/4 SC. 4-30-8 AS WOMMNVER

[T
18" PRAE P 1

LEGEND
ROV PeE FOWD
" OV AD FOND
0O STOwW StAen vAwaLE
©  SKNTART SEAER MAOLE y
o e e
®  wamr v auy
® WATER VALVE o
e W p-oox
©  uRArPUE
= e
o BROUND LCHT
g T POLE W ) AR
o RECTOC RANSFORMER
T
W rsenn
| e e
[ TELEPHONE MANHOLE
] TELEHONE PLLESTAL
@ oA
q son
X Fowr oSt
P asenr
——— s
———— o SATARY SEUER
—rm———— 700w SEWR
e OVERNEAD DECTAN
T———t— NGRSO ELECTC
— NATEN deant
—— s LA
— TP
N CATY L
— = - oo o e
— — — = mnaws

A

2263023
NSPOTDSE (mw

PARCEL 2

r'
a
8

l

TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE
RESLBONON

Sont. wa: / r—
& Ouwnan e WS TNBIR WAL NERTTENT o e FORE O o e
1 RIS S oS OF e fomm RO PR TE AT A 017 N O IR
H TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE

PER DOC 93Kdtary :

PER DOC_ BIKAB76R

2 u / 2 27387
L S TALWAY FARK OF COMMERCE
o PP g g

SHEET 1 OF 3




ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIFP 38 NORTH, RANGE B, EAST OF THE TMIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, KANE COUNTY, ALINGIS

e

Scale 1" = §0°

LTS STATT PLANE
EAST 20WC NADBS (1201)

: e .

rﬂu.;'—'_:':_ § : o
e e e e e L2 TRy 508 2oy
nEcwe Wy atcme paes APPREPGUATE LOCATIN 7 v
c O SAMTARY STHER 7//
T L 7

auuusnuwnuus
ot LEGEND
Bam on-n & g
40 30. 7 W Ot 1659 o0 stom s wunos b L
9 8  SuMr SR useaE NS B wsn 4 VY Wb \
O e woamy S
s mmr vur AN
R @ e h
. o mmgoor
Rl DILTY POLE
-4 T PaLE
= GROUND LieHT
T POLE Wy ST AR
-] ELECTOC TRANSFOUER
/ @ [ e
/ = cswEm
- WATER METER
)\/ ©  mpoesweos
€ mowe Ao
PARCEL 1 [ — .
d . M
NE1/4, SW /4 % eowe post
SEC. 4-38-8 P rusrar
GOLF COURSE
,:“/_
1
i
1
1
1
'
i
i
i
1
{
1
i
1
|
b
8
H
D ez T §|
H
BALL WASH EH
q/ §
[
Y‘SU‘WKI\/’W‘(!I‘/‘“I-’—IBW
PARCEL 2 \
5 - 5 ORI
T BT e T i o T LT S T
TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMENIE FER 00 n‘:’ mn"

[ | woode'ss" 2000 _Quon 26) |
(2 [ so0w'orE ispas” “tsoum 190357

’«, . JACOB & HEFNER
et aiks

SHEET 2 OF 3




ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 4, TDWNMP JB NORTH, RANGE B, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL

PARCEL 1t
mArFMY OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 oF stcmu 4,
TOUNSHIP 38 NORTY, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRI
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
CWMEMM AT THE NORWICS CORNER OF SAW) SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE
SOUM THE T LUNE OF SAD EIIAHIER 17502 FEET: THENCE
EASMY ALONG A

LNE THAT ANGLE OF 85 DE( 40
TES, as’msmmu:rrmmm:tsnwzorwsw THREST
1/4, mau FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINWING: THENGE SOUTH PARALLEL
SAD WEST LIWE 2 4

ANGL
lAST OESCRIBED COURSE 100 FEET TG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST
A POING

THAT AR ormfscwml:sr 1/4 OF SEGTION 4, TOWNSH® 35 NORTH,
RANGE B EAST OF INE THIRD PRINGIPAL MERWMAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENGING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE
SOUTH ALONG THE BEST LINE OF SAD QUAR! TEWSE'CYIDN 1325.80 FEET TO
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTH 142 OF SAKD SQUTHWEST 1, rm
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; YNENGNMIHAUWGMKSTUN&'

DEUNEATION 0OF vn:rulms COHDUCTED BY ENGAP. (NG, WAS PLRFORUED
SITE ON MAR(H 29, 2018, A MAP WAS BY ENCAP SHOWND

PROVIDE
THE WETLAND AREAS ON THIS &I nemmm MARKERS WERE LOCATED IN 2018
AND LINEWORK CONNEETING THESE MARKERS ARE AS SHOWN HEREOH

FedBe

DPLS

CONPARY, LIC

7 V7 V20 S\ g AL A 12 ey

MERIDIAN, KANE COUNTY, WLINOIS

THIS ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE BURVEY 1S BASED ON THE FIRST AIIERICAH mu
NCE COMPANY COMMTMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE HAVNG FILE NI
NCS~1003118-MPLS WTH A l:mnnmtnl DATL OF FEBRUARY 19, 2020. THE ME
?;:SH Nmms THLE COMMMENT AFFECTS THE FOLLOWING TAX PARCEL NUMBER:
- 04~ 351-024,

(EXCEPTION ¢3) SEE TERMS AND PROVSIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AS
DISCLOSED BY WSTRUMENT RECORDED JULY 31. Im AS DOCUMENT NO. nman FOR
TTEMS AFFECTNG THE SURJECT TRACT WOT PLOTTABLE. BLANKET M NATURE.

(EXCEPTION §4) SEE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF AN ANNEXATION AGREEMENT
DISCLUSED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED MAY 23, 2008, AS DOCUMENT WO, zooemm
FOR MEMS AFFECTING THE SUGJECT TRACT MOT PLOTIABLE, BLANKET IN NA'

{ENCEPTION J5) SEE WILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 0. 09-08-17-01, AN

ORDINANCE IIIIMG THE ROUTE 31 H:D[VEUPIQI nuu AREA IEWDED

AUGUST 26, 2000, AS DOCUMENT NG 2DOOKDS5343 FOR ITEMS AFFEGTING

SUBJECT THACT, NOT PLOTTABLE, BLANKET IN NATURE.

{EXCEPTION #6) SEE VILAGE OF NORTH AURORA ORDINANCE HD 09-08-17-02, AN

Wﬂmﬁ! AMENDING WE ROUTE 31 liDtVEI.OF IENT PROKCT AREA RECORDED
UGUST 26, 2009, AS DOCUMENT Q. muws Fm ITEWS AFFECTNG THE

suum TRALT, NOT Pl.nmalz BLANKET

(EXCEPTION ¢7) SEE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA ORDINANCE NO. 0R-08-17~03, AN

ORDINANCE ADOPTING TAX Nﬂm[uv rlllmum: m 'bt mntn nouv: SI

REDEVELOPMENT PAO.E A RE

200BKDE5H7 FOR usus AFFECTING THE ml:! TnAc’l. NoT Plnl'lAlI.t ILMI(LI L

NATURE

(EXCEPTION #8) SEE GRANT OF EASEWENT RECORDED MAY 4, 2018, AS DOCUMENT
ammoﬂmssﬂ FOR A 4,20 FOUT WEE' SANITARY SLWER EASEMENT AFFECTING THE
PROPERTY,

TABLE A MEWS:
1) RON RODS WTH CAFS WILL BE SET AT ALL CORNERS UNLESS OTHERWSE NOTED.

2) THE ADDRESS OF VALLEY GREEN GOLF COURSE IS 314 KINGSWOOD DRIVE, NORTH
AURORA, ILLINOIS 80542
3) ACCORDING TO A SCALED INTERPRETATION OF THE FEDERAL EUERGENCY WANAGIMENT
c:ucv FLOOD luwnmﬂ: RATE MAP HAVING A MAP NUMBER OF 17DBBCDIADH FOR e
, LLNOIS, AND 'ORATED AREAS. WTH AN EWEC'!I\E DA'IE Of Dt(! R 20,
zlm AND upsT lw:u'mr REVISED AUGUST 3, 2009, Thi
ZONE "X" (AREAS DETERMINED 10 BE OUTSDE THE 0.2% Allw‘l CNANII rwourwn)

4) TOTAL AREA - 2,862,702 S0. FT OR 81120 ACRES &

9) THERE WERE NO WARKED PARKING SPACES ON THE SUBJECT TRACT OBSERVED DURING
THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURMVEY.

n) ull.m STATEMENT JU.LLE. DIG NUMBER AQG1:

T UNDERCROUD UTLITES SHONM HAVE BEEN, LOGATED FROM THE FIELD SURVEY
Ilrolmmm OF FIELD LULLE MARKINGS, AMD EXISTING DRAMNGS AND UTLITY ATLASES
FROM THE HORTH AND MICOR. THE

3
ACCURATELY AS POSSBLE FEOM THE INrumA'non AVALABLE THE SURVEYOR HAS NOT
PHYSICAILY LOCATED THE UNDERGROUND UTI

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )
T0: Opua Development Company, LLC, o Delaware fimited Fiobilily company. AND

Just Goff, Inc., 1/k/o Compbell and Pierce, Inc., an Minois corporotion; AND
Firsl American Title Insuronca Company:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP GR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE WADE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2016 MINIUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE
VEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOFTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4,

a). 7(b1), e), B, B, AND 11 OF TABLE A TI!REOF

THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED DN APRIL 3, 2020.

DATED THIS 3RD DAY OF APRIL IN THE YEAR 2020,

TIMOTHY G, WOLFE
ILUNGIS PROFESSIDNAL LAND SURVEYOR NG 35-0D353%

JACOB & HEFNER ASSOCIATES,
MY LICENSE EXPIRES NOVEWBEA 30, 2020

SHEET 3 OF 5

’9 ]ACOB & H!:FNI:.R




RTVIVEAY

pu—7
“HAOHS, 5Y 2 TSV QMY | TNV 20 1334 § NNISIMHLOOS BWL A0
.—zu._umqux!-!-m.izm.<Suhnun-n!:zi-donmf:n-.n>§Bn!.u==.wam<u.s-z<ﬁuumﬁ~E&ugu _hh.Q;.>

‘NHOHS SY 1 T20UYd 40 1334 v MRIMLNOS 3L E3AC (NIISVA ALTUN DMENA 100 01 ¥ 404 4eety M0RLECTS),
209261 INIANI00 S¥ TG TZ ISNINY QIGHOOT UIN0D JO Xvd AVATOL B04 NOISAKENS 0 1vid 36 (of WOudI»d @~ 0 — — — — —

"NOHS SY 2 T0Wvd J0 1304 §I NNAISYI WY

3L OHY L3 0 NMIHLNON L OMUTILY GNY NWOHS SINM ONMOTNG 404 69299NI6 JNIMIOO SY ‘166t 42 1SNDlv 030003y
1 ON NOSWI0BNS3H 20HIM0D 40 XAV AYMTIOL H0J NOISWOGNS 40 IVId T35 ONY “(3HSIIEVIS SINN JOVAI3S INKTNNG B04
9Z0RZ64 ININNJOO Sv 'BEGL 'Z 1SNONY (AGHAI3Y J0UIMNOD 10 MSVd AYATIOL H0J NISKKENS 20 1vid 335 (5§ NOUCION3)

&
&

NWOHS SY ‘L TOMVd 0
1314 OF NXGHLNOS OKY 1334 GI NU3ISIA SHL 1332 OF NNJHLNON JH1 DII9SY ONY GIHSNEVISI S3M1 JOVALSS IMGING Y04
QZOGZSL ININNIOO SY 'BBSL T LSPONY C3CUO0SY JNINNDD 40 Xvd AVMTIOL HOJ HOISIAKIBRS 0 1¥id T35 (W NOLLQION3) N

JYIUYN N LIDINVIE TIRYLION 10N "SONY] 3410 ONY 2 120uvd ‘1 |d|s
TEOHVd GNULAZ4EY SIL 804 Q0S020NL00Z ANITWYI0O BY '1D02 ‘T INOF GEGHOOR INSHG3USY NOLANSSY ONY NIANDESY 335
“RIUYN N IDINVIE TIEYLIQT 10N SONY] 23RI0 ONY Z 130MYd '§
T30Uvd SMLOZAY SAALI 304 GLICLONDE ININADOT SY ‘B8A1 'vl ISNOMY O30HOD3Y JNAIINTY NOLASSY GMNY LMINDISSY 335
"BHALYN N IDAVIE “TIEVLIQTd 10N "SONY] d3HIO ONY 2 120uvd °|
30UV SMLIIAY S 204 SLICLONRE ININNMIOQ SY ‘8661 'yl ISNINY (A0HOIZY LNIAI3LOY NOLANWISSY QY LNIWNOSSY 335 A
“BHUVN NI LIWNYIE “NEVILON LON 'SONY HIHLD ONY 2 T304vd °| 130U¥d OMILDIAY SR3LI %04 COLGZNEE LNAmNS00
SY 'FBEL 2T WHdv (303 SINYNIA0D FAUDAL0NY 0 NOBYEVIIN CELVISTY QMY CIONGAY LStd 336 (OF NOud20K3) %

%

&

{tio-1ee—v0-51
£ TIY - Z T304Vd) {620-167-#0-CL 40 Luva = | TAuvd) SHIRNN TIHVA XV ONIOTIOS 3HL SLOLLV INIINNOS ‘m.w%
JUU S N GEROSHD VITY L 0202 Y2 AMVIRELS S0 YO INFUNRGD ¥ Hil STdn-61i5001-SIN U3EANN I SHAYH 2,
JONWIMSHI TUU M0J INIALEURGD ANVANOD JONVONSHI TUL NYXUNW (Sid 3H1 MO G3SYE S1 ABAMNS JUU ONVT SASK/YLY SHL .W% SHEiEEseE BT

SZOUZEL 0A A3d
3NCEMIOD 40 Nivd AVATIOL

¢ 107 40 lyvd

2iB-1ee-¥a-51

)
SIONTH KINAOS INVX VHOSNY HIZON S0 30¥THA 30 N -M\:

69£9PME 000 ¥3d
T ONNNIIS 0 INOd T Of 1331 66IS N7 ATHINON GIVS 3HL NOTY “ISYI SONODIS @1 SIUNNN 65 SIT030 ek

1 0N NOISAKINS 3
00NNAD KT RV AVNTIL

2903 5INAD QS pumibrpuf) ———-ar-
sur) 3T puncsbrpurn

)
(0915 = x) sebiany amy k&l

(ons =,x) onorgioeg swy

)

18008y duoydaray

apyuop Jnes wys

ubs

oy s2avS Am)Nos

4ot om0

wog €04

(ussy ysan) od 14817

“od Jubyy

vayass puz pesoyy

oty aug

Houpuy A2

uonbs SiManys s6oK0K]

Aunay aimanns sbowoxy

iSO AL 690D

Bonzbvdj)z(oﬁvoa.@

O T e [ I
0202 ¢ ¥ ‘paredarg oreg ! age m ! I -
ABAHNS 3L SWLOMNOD 30 S5100Kd FHL SN o~ 11+ .
ARABG JLLL NV S/Vryy 0. V3560 1NN 103ANS Tt K SI0VaS INDRIY GDRVA ON 20 83HL (5 ! mmmw ! ! e o AT e ]
T ANvama) sndo pospiy
el 'F SROY 129 B0 ‘L4 0 56T ~ Z ONY | S130Evd 0 yRuv Triok (v Hog mN Pl HANSIH 2 NOUAN_.. _
aptred e Kaaing ! 20 |1 | ‘
0202 "0f M3EMGAON S2HdX3 SN AN “(MYIII00TS WHD THINKY %20 JHL 30500 | mmm |
“ONI SLLYIDOSSY MIN4IH ¥ B0aVC 30 01 (IMMRIAI0 SY3HY) X, INOZ NHLM STIV LWL LSS L ‘6002 «2 _
SESE00-SF 'ON HOATAUNS ONY1 TYHOBSISO0UY SONITH F LSNONY Q2SWM AUNIIRI 1SOW (HY 2007 02 H3AMGI0 0 UVA IUIRLT r RN SN CHNDKOMIONN THL GIIYO01 ATWIEAHS
2014 D AHIORL HY N SYZMY DA1YEOAHOIN OMY ‘SONT ‘ALWOD INVX 804 HOYECQGROLL W0 ) N 1O ! JON SYH M0AIANS ML TIBVINAY NOUVFROMI 3HL RONS THSSOd
40 336K dYN ¥ ONAVH dYA hval TONVANSM Q00U ADNIDV ANGN2OVHVIN 2 oH 27\ onod—~"1 M i Y ATUVINI0Y SY D3LYD0] v A3HL LVHL ASUN3D S300 3K HONOHITY
AONEMIT WES0L IHL S0 NOUYITdARIN OT¥IS ¥ QL SNKHODTY (& ! ! CaLvahd HOUYIOT 190 L 1 Y NIOKE SaUiT Spegun 34, 1YWL
; 3d0ud ML oM [ i Y3V 3L N SIUNUN HONS TIY TSHANDD NAGHS SILCMLN CNNOHSHEGND
3HL ONUANGNGD £ SSI008d ML E.a-_ﬂm_ -.MME w(w_ w—mg m._waf ON(Z /, ‘%.u \ [} - un.n. n .:.m\« H.‘.ve w_..._ iu..xb ..mwmwzg:oii:.mmexuf SEE_”m Uu‘.»_ h_su_.m [d oﬁﬁ
'0Z0Z SVAA ML N RISY 0 AVA GHT SHL QRUYA 0Nl 24 a4 nosia VIO E-T! i SV
" o o s (I r~s ]/ U B 0 50T K S MRS S ST
‘G202 'E WY KO QAT SVA oM T IHL FSMUIHO SSINN ARG T L 135 38 TN Savd HiM SO0 NOM {1 3oz '00NG AT / ; VZI0i20X ¥IBAN 90 TITIT INFLIVIS AL L1 MLl ¥ v
JOREHL ¥ TMEvL 0 1 anv 8 9 (Bl (e Bk STy ¢ 107 S v. i [ . -y
& °C°Z ') SAIL SIANONI ANV “SISN ONY YLV A6 QILAOQY ONY OIHSITEVASI ALUNDM ‘SASANNS V4 £ s/ HIOD 1V
TUL AHY] SISN/YLTY 304 SINTRIHINTY YLD QHVANVLS RONNIN 9102 JHL HLU JINVONAITV " P 3ad o 2 oy saquny wndeaxy saung ony (€
NI 30V 3U3% O3SV ST 11 HOWM NO ASAUNS 3HL ONY LYd 20 oYW SIKL 1YL AJUE3D OL S1 SIHL a0y 0% 4 T0 s 4 LB i A )
L ey - ? ) OMIVOT 10 HHVd AVATIOL NI i
Auotuiag anuoxnsul BNy ubouswry {8t lAJ_lL Yoy ioe] u/ R \ ﬁ oc.nﬂ/. 2101 40 MIN0D ISINHLNOS O o UML) — a———a
ONy %uodwoa Ayyqon poliusl siou] uo “3T] ‘SIEpcleju3 Jjiuung b o &7 AN o\ ouy auaydeps punoaopug —— gy
ONv Auoduwos Aupgoy pajw]| si0M0pq b *3T) Aundwa) |uawdopwaq sndg Q) el % = <
e 4 o mnos ave)g —
( 20vdN0 30 ALNDD T e 500 1 diivie EZ0%E6 500 Wd P
85 ( UL AV 20 LA 1003 09 S "ON NOISIAXIENS R B —
€ sanmi 0 uns JAIA aNY DUINKOI K HEVd AVATDL [ I TP T R —

l Lavd
T 1358vd m“m : Al

£
8
:
:
:
:
§
§
st
:
3
§
§

muyummmﬂ,l\

@ © L LB

6LYLOEB 900 ¥3d

*SHATIOS Z 'ON NOISWICans3y

Sy 0FUDS30 9TB0LE( ON ININNN0O Uid GIQHOI3Y S¥ ‘2 1) IIHINMOD 0 VY AYHTIOL M € 10T 20 Javd 020~156-+0-61 40 Ud
2vHE N HIGM M 1333 OF ‘ONYT J0 oIS ¥ MO C2020%06 ININNJO0 SV 0867 ‘€l AUVANVS QIGY0033 LNGIGINOV 9209264 300 3d
A8 GRAYTO SV ALU3G0¥d BIHIO ONY QML ONY INO S33M¥d 30 IS3N3E 901 N1 IVHYIITTS 404 INIHESYI TUIND K AV AT

S Z 107 40 lyvd

[X
(L2 3,86,92.008)

5

3z
mm 1 107

2§

SONTH KNGO INYH VHOSNY HIHON J0 FIVTIA JHE M 2 LINN JOUINNGD 40 v AYMTIOL 50

£ 107 40 1334 05 ARGHINGS Mt 40 1334 0S AWASYI 3r1 4O £590461 INFNAIOT SY 6061 't AYN 0300030 4330
N OEANISIY SY ALU3O8d HIHIO GNY OML ONY “INO STOUVD JO 1LNTE 07 NOIS JONVALNI NE¥d MO4 (N3nISYI
T ToHve

$ZDRE6L 000 34

6208261 200 134
W ovELE 20 &1 @

6£91FDME D00 30

TOUINMOD 0 NYd AWMTION
NIZ 101 40 387 15

SIOMTY ZINNDD INVR

VHOUNY HIYON 0 J9YTMA 34 N Z YIGANN NOSWIOBNSIY JOUINN0I 0 XY AYMTIOL M 't 107 40 3N A TSV
L 0 ARIUSVIHIVON ONY ARASYT INUD | ON NOSWIORISTY THUIMOE S0 NEvd AVMTIOL A ¢ JOT L8V JVvHi
Z uvd

Z AIANNN NOKSIAIGANS 3
IONINNOD 40 Ndvd AVMTIOL

NU|LOY 0 3NN ARAISYS
p

4180 QY SSYH)

30 3VEIE 200 orQ \
30N VIORY HIHON 30 30¥TIA JHI 10 DNNNOIG 40 INOY 3 O 1T 227 WM 0 5 SO 51 —
2NV 1SVD SGNDOTS 46" SItAAW 00 SIR00 00 HHON S Z 101 GIVS 0 SHAI03 ISIMHLNOS

o T 9 inuiey | w0

iy — 8199c 3,02/0800
U&. O INZINVE AMUSYIINOS IAVINGD JANND ¥ SNIE T A THIHINOS OIS INOTY AWIUSMHINOS ONY ATIISIM SONHY —— o u {51"99¢ 2.92.65.68S)

o'
1324 GTY USIM SONO2IE OF SDNY 5 5INOI0 ST HINOS
JONI 1331 4095 1S3 SQNOIIS 14 SIIANE £1 SINOS 0O KOS TWIH 1311 61995 S0 NI ¥ T 401 QIYS 40 a1
HIZON 31 2NO0W ISYT SONOD3S SE SN 66 STIOTC 62 HINOS DM T 107 (VS 30 43R03 ISHHINON il 1V ONNNISIE N0 ST IONZS 38k v LNLIMGS [ o HINUAD 1Y I NOU ONNOJ
N 5 T
3 b NausAN.

(2r'S0z 3,81.66.685) . Sl

SSMOTI0J SV GISUISIT WEDBZS! INIWIIO0 SV 0961 00 0 8 0'5C del MM ONTID; 8208261 900 439

Y2 ISONY QIR0 AU 1V I OF DNGHOIIV "NYIRITN TYRON QUHI WL 0 1SV 8 NV $EaON OF sSNNOI 208261 200 d
¥ OLLITS S0 BIYIO ISINHIO0S il 40 1V 4D ROSAIENS ¥ SNGE SOHINNOD SO Nvd AVWNTIDL 0 2 107 40 Jivd 1VRt TN A0 ivd AvATIOL
& 12uve NI Z 101 40 3N HLEON

N Z 101 40 HINHD
ASIMHLEON | TOMYd 'WO0'd

SIONTYH “ALNNOD INVX N 'NVIGIIIN TYdioNISd OdiHL FHL 40 USY3 8 JONVY ‘HIHON 85 diHSNMOL
7 NOUDIS 40 YIUHVAO LSIMHINOS FHI NIHLM TTY ‘69L9PONIE ON INIWNIOQ SY 1661 ‘LZ 1SNONY QI0HOIIY H034FHL 1Vid FHI OL ONIQHOIDY L ON NOISAIGBNSIY IIYINNCD 40
HYd AVMTIOL M | 107 40 1¥Vd OGNV ‘8208261 'ON INFWN20Q SV ‘8861 ‘T2 1SNONY G304H003% F0INFHI 1V FHI OL ONIGHODOY FOHINNOD 40 Melvd AVMTIOL NI 2 107 40 1¥vd

AHAYNS HTLIL %sz SASN/VLIV

aN3937

(1021) Teavn oz 15v3
W VIS SiomTY

SRV 30 SEVY
086 = 1 31838

™

oot o8 87 0

UMD 20 WiVd AYATIOL

(73S o son)
o iR

08 Jvisuum




APPLICATION FOR MAP AMENDMENT

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA PETITION NO. 2\-Ol

25 East State Street

North Aurora, IL 60542 FILE NAME \/ML&H GwaaN WMOM
DATE STAMP

L APPLICANT AND OWNER DATA

Name of Applicant* OPuS DeueloPment COMP‘”U'I L Le <

Address of Applicant {100 “\”WULDJ Suik Q00 , Rocemont , IL (oOIS
Telephone Numbers ¥4 7-31Q - [¢z Y

Name of Owner(s)* S 13 r e /Jusy ae @ )

Telephone Number
Email Address

If Applicant is other than owner, attach letter of authorization from Owner.

Title of Record to the real estate was acquired by Owner on

IL. ADDRESS, USE AND ZONING OF PROPERTY
Address of Property 34 Kinqwood DRWE, Nordh Avrera, 1L / T8 ouw Avrmrp_

(Indfcate location if no common address)

Legal Description: See advrgthes

Parcel Size 314 k"\;)wooo’. ‘O-SLAmJ /fEb WME_L.S‘I_ LS

Present Use 31y hn’uo.r Gok Coumie l 789 owerlemd Drivg - Valuad I‘ml

(Business, manufacturing, residential, etc.)

Present Zoning District 3/ kinqueoy: R | / 78d overload dnix: O-R ~1

(Zoning Ordinance Classification)

*In the event that the applicant or owner is a trustee of a land trust or a beneficiary or beneficiaries of a
land trust, a statement identifying each beneficiary of such land trust by name and address and defining
his//her interest therein shall be attached hereto. Such statement shall be verified by the trustee or by a
beneficiary.

Application for Map Amendment 5/30/18 Page 1 of 6



III PROPOSED MAP AMENDMENT

Proposed Zoning District O~ R =} (Zoning Ordinance Classification)

Has the present applicant previously sought to rezone the property or any part thereof? N
If so, when?

To what zoning district classification? N / A

What type of improvement to the Property is planned? I3 o\ausjg\g ‘ Bol)dng,

7

What will be the actual use of such improvement(s)? Tndvsirw |

What are the existing uses of the property within the general area of the Property in question?

wite  Gole Course oW Vocanw [anl

v CHECKLIST FOR ATTACHMENTS
The following items are attached hereto and made a part hereof:

1. Legal Description (may be included in items 2 or 5 below)

2. Two (2) copies of an Illinois Land Surveyor’s plat of survey showing the nearest
dedicated east-west and north-south streets, the right-of-way width and the distance of
each street form the property in question.

3. Five (5) copies of a plot plan, 8 %” x 11” or 8 % x 14” showing proposed construction if
any.
4. A written certified list containing the names of registered owners, their mailing addresses

and tax parcel numbers, of all properties within 250 feet of the property for which the
amendment is requested.

on A copy of owner’s title insurance policy commitment or deed for the subject property.

6. Filing fee in the amount of $300.00; if paid by check make payable to the ‘Village of
North Aurora’. Please note, an escrow deposit will also be required per Village Code.

7. Letter of authorization letter from owner, if applicable.

Disclosure of beneficiaries of land trust, if applicable.

.

Completed forms for the following must accompany application, if applicable:

9. Visit the Illinois Department of Natural Resources’ website www.dnr.state.il.us and
initiate a consultation using DNR’s EcoCat online application
10.  Visit the Kane DuPage Soil and Water Conservation District’s website

Application for Map Amendment 5/30/18 Page 2 of 6



The Applicant authorizes the Village of North Aurora representatives to enter on to the property to make
inspection during the hearing process.

The Applicant is responsible for publishing a legal notice in the newspaper, sending mail notices to
properties within 250 feet and posting a sign(s) on the property advertising the public hearing. These
shall be in accordance with Village Ordinances at the times decided by the Village of North Aurora.

The undersigned hereby agrees to reimburse the Village for all costs of court reporter fees for attendance
at and transcript of hearing(s) and other professional service fees for services rendered in connection
with this application as defined in Appendix B of the North Aurora Zoning Ordinance. Such
reimbursement shall be made promptly upon receipt of invoices from the Village, whether or not this
application for special use is approved.

I (we) certify that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents submitted
herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

Zl B Jo- 13- 2020

Apblicant or Authorized Agent Date

Owner Date

Application for Map Amendment 5/30/18 Page 3 of 6



The Applicant authorizes the Village of North Aurora representatives to enter on to the property to make
inspection during the hearing process.

The Applicant is responsible for publishing a legal notice in the newspaper, sending mail notices to
properties within 250 feet and posting a sign(s) on the property advertising the public hearing. These
shall be in accordance with Village Ordinances at the times decided by the Village of North Aurora.

The undersigned hereby agrees to reimburse the Village for all costs of court reporter fees for attendance
at and transcript of hearing(s) and other professional service fees for services rendered in connection
with this application as defined in Appendix B of the North Aurora Zoning Ordinance. Such
reimbursement shall be made promptly upon receipt of invoices from the Village, whether or not this
application for special use is approved.

1 (we) certify that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents submitted
herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

Applicant or Authorized Agent Date
% M 1270
Owner— Date

Application for Map Amendment 5/30/18 Page 3 of 6



The Applicant authorizes the Village of North Aurora representatives to enter on to the property to make
inspection during the hearing process.

The Applicant is responsible for publishing a legal notice in the newspaper, sending mail notices to
properties within 250 feet and posting a sign(s) on the property advertising the public hearing. These
shall be in accordance with Village Ordinances at the times decided by the Village of North Aurora.

The undersigned hereby agrees to reimburse the Village for all costs of court reporter fees for attendance
at and transcript of hearing(s) and other professional service fees for services rendered in connection
with this application as defined in Appendix B of the North Aurora Zoning Ordinance. Such
reimbursement shall be made promptly upon receipt of invoices from the Village, whether or not this
application for special use is approved.

I (we) certify that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents submitted
herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

Applicant or Authorized Agent Date
g?f /4 7. 1o/13 fdozo
Owner Date '

Application for Map Amendment 5/30/18 Page 3 of 6




MAP AMENDMENT STANDARDS
APPLICATION FOR MAP AMENDMENT

Please provide a typed response to each of the following standards:

1. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the existing use and zoning of nearby
property?

2. Does the proposed amendment diminish the existing zoning of the subject property?

3. Does the proposed amendment promote the public health, safety, comfort, convenience

and general welfare?

4. Does the proposed amendment provide a relative gain to the public, as compared to the
hardship imposed upon the applicant?

5. Is the proposed amendment not feasible for development as it is presently zoned?

6. Has the property in question been vacant, as presently zoned, for a significant length of
time considered in the context of development in the area where the property is located?

7. Is there evidence of community need for the use proposed by the  applicant?

8. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the comprehensive plan?

9. Does the proposed amendment benefit the residents of the Village as a whole and not just
the applicant, property owners, neighbors of any property under consideration, or other
special interest groups?

10.  Does the proposed amendment avoid creating nonconformities?

11. Does the proposed amendment remain consistent with the trend of development, if any,
in the general area of the property in question?

12.  Are adequate public facilities available including but not limited to, schools, parks, police
and fire protection, roads, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, and water lines, or are public
facilities reasonably capable of being provided prior to the development of the use which
would be permitted on the subject property if the Amendment were adopted.

Application for Map Amendment 5/30/18 . Page 4 of 6



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF KANE )

I, being first duly sworn on

oath depose and say that I am trust officer of and that the following

persons are all of the beneficiaries of

Trust Officer

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO

Before me this day of , 20

A Notary Public in and for such County.

Application for Map Amendment 5/30/18 Page 5 of 6



Following are the names and addresses of all properties within 250 feet of the property in questions for
which the Map Amendment is being requested.

TAX PARCEL NO. NAME MAILING ADDRESS

See  Atahg Exhitt Wik Pan\ W nvmbar. et el malls alhenes 4o be

|
Suvt \ntnten.

I Josh Bavwr , being first duly sworn on oath certify that all of the above
statements and the statements contained in any papers or plans submitted herewith are true and correct.

ﬁ " Jo-11-2020
Applicant Signature Date

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO
Before me this 19 dayof _ Octvloev~  ,20 2O

4/%.. £~ OFFICIAL SEAL

. . JOHNS
Notary Public Nom? !.ﬁuf;. STATE OF ILLINOIS

My Commission Expires 09/15/2022

Application for Map Amendment 5/30/18 Page 6 of 6



Zrsoe
Zbs09
2r509
Ths08

Y509
vsos
vs09

w509

Ws09
THS08
509
THS0R
Trs09
THs509
Trs09
Tv509
rso9
w509
¥s09
509
T¥s09
2¥509
T¥509
509

T¥s09
ws9
WS
Tvso9
T¥509
Ts09
509
T¥s09
Zvsoe
509
Zbs9
509
Zbso9
2b509
bso9
509
bsos
s09
[
THso9
Trsea
Ws03
zbsos
2509
z¥s09
Tys09
rs09
Tbs09
Trso9
T¥so9
Z¥s09
s

l

dzals  aesAlS

VHOUNY HINON ~ 92-19T a¥
VHONNY HI4ON e
YHOUNY HIYON

VHOUNY HIYON ua
VHOUNY HI4ON ¥a
YHONNY HINON Py
VHOINY HLYON & d
VHOANY HINON 14
VHOUNY HINON yo
YBOUNY HIYON =]
VHOUNY HINON ya
YHOUNY HIYON ¥a
YHOUNY HINON Q
YHOUNY HIYON ¥a
YHOUNY HIYON ¥a
VHOUNY HLYON ua
VHQUNY HLYON

VYHOUNY HLEON =]
VHOUNY HLYON 1
VHOUNY HIYON 1L
YHOUNY HLYON ¥a
VHOUNY HLHON o
VHOUNY HI¥ON ay
VHOUNY HLEON Ha
YHOUNY HLYON ua
VHOUNY HLYON ua
YHOUNY HLEON ¥a
VHOUNY HLYON 4a
VHOUNY HLHON Avm
VHOUNY HLYON ua
YHOUNY HLYON Ha
YHOUNY HLYON 1
YHOUNY HIYON  ZE-6ZE @
VHOUNY HLYON ua
YHOUNY HLYON AV
VHOUNY HLEON Ho
YHOUNY HLYON S 1d
VHOUNY HLYON Ho
VHOUNY HLYON Ha
YHOUNY HLYON ¥a
VHOHNY HLYON Ha
VHOUNY HLYON ua
VHOHMNY HLNON Ha
VHOUNY HLYON Ha
VHOMNNY HLEON Ha
WVHOUNY HLYON L4}
VHOENY HLYON d
V4OUNY HIHON T d
VHOUNY HLYON Al
VYOUNY HLHON ua
VHOHNY HLYON ua
VHOHNY HLYON ua
VUOUNY HLHON oy
VHOUNY HIYON Ha
VHOUNY HLYON

WdOHNY HLYON 8 d
VHOUNY HLYON 14
VHOHNY HLHON 14
VHOMNY HLYON 4a
VHOHNY HLHON Ha
VHOMNY HLYON ay
WHOUNY HLHON ua
VHOUNY HLYON §a
VHOUNY HLUON

VHOUNY HLHON d
V404NY HLEON d
VHOMNY HLBON € d
VHOHNY HIHON AV
VHONNY HLHON ¥a
VYOUNY HLHON d
YY0UNY HLYON uaq
VHONNY HIYON ua
VHOUNY HLYON ¥a
VYHOUNY HLHON Z d
VUOUNY HLYON ¥a
YHOUNY HLHON Ha
VHOUNY HIHON ud
VHOUNY HLHON u
VHOUNY HIYON 9 W
VHOUNY HLION ¥a
VHOUNY HIYON £ L]

A}y uauiedy WRN PROY

LHadyly
NQLIDNIEd
AVMNIOONI
NOLIINIE]
QOOMSOND
NHOr
4v1dod
WW1d0d
AOOMSSNIN
J3YLAYHIHI
JOOMSONIN
AONVTIH3IAD
TivaNvY
ANYINEAO
NOLIDNiHd
ANVIN3AD
AVMNIOONND
JIYLAYMIHD
HV1dod
FIYLAUHIHID
ANYTY3A0
NOL3IONINd
4oy
NOLIONINd
GOOMSONDI
QDOMSONI
ACOMSOND
NOLIDNIEd
MOTIIM
NOLIDNINd
NOLIONI¥d
FIHLAYYIHD
Ldoddiv
ANYTY3A0
MOTIM
GOOMSEONI
¥v1dod
Yva
NOL13DNMd
NOLIDNId
NOL3IINd
yvaz
QOOMSONIA
OOMSONDI
TOOMSONIN
NOLIINIEd
Y¥dOd
UVIdOd
¥v1dod
ONVIH3A0
ONVIHIAO
NOLZININY
TTIVaNYH
QOOMSONIN
AVMNIOONN
v1dod
Yvidod
Hvd0d
NOLIINId
NOLDNd
Lyodyiv
QOOMSONIN
NOL3IDNIYd
YIMOL daLvm
HY1dOd
HYldOd
HY1d0d
MOTIIM
NOL3INId
HY1dOd
JOOMSON
TOOMSINDI
JOOMSONDI
HV1dOd
NOL3IONIHd
NOLIDNIHd
NOLIDNIEd
Hv1dod
HV1dod
ONVTHIAD
Yv1dod

Jwep @S SSRAWO) JIGUIN JaINS

™we

S 98T

TIE
oze
68T
£0Z
(213
S &L
£08
ooz
s 102
00T
E144

saz

bR-14
ot
or9

60E
YIE
Fad

k114
s
L% 74
TOE
0T
§97

68T
14
1414

€

STE
STE
TZE
800
S6T
68T
€0C
T08

(44

1212

S 9€T

68T

oz

108

LZE
ey

(1154

68T
ooz
681

GT-66T-L6T

TYILISNANI LHOIT
4%

{23N) WIDHIWWOD
uis

s

{23N) WIDHIAWOD
IVIHLSAANL LHDIT
TWIYLSNAN] LHOI
yis

uis

uis

TVIHLSNANI LHOI
1dNDX3 XVL
TVRILSNANI LHOM
yis

TYIBLSRANI LHON
(03N} TvanLINONMOY
udis

VILLSNANI LHOTT
uis

TVIHLSNONI LHOT
uis

TVIBLSNANI LHON
s

uis

193N) WIDHINWOD
uis

uds

ANV WLLNIQISIY- LNVIVA
His

ud5

s

VILISNANI LHSN
IVIHLSNANI LHSN
S

(23N) VID¥IWINGD
WIMLSNANI LHOTI
His

HdS

HiS

uds

uis

His

uds

HiS

uis

IVIHLSNANI LHON
WILSNANI LHON
TVILSNANT LHEM
YRILSNANL LHEN
L1dW3X3 XYL

His

{33N) VID¥IWWOD
uis

{23N) wENLINDIYOY
IVIYLSNAN) LHBI
TVIYLSNANL LHON
TVRLSNAN) LHEN
LdW3X3 XvL

uis

IVINLSAANI LHON
s

uis

LAW3X3 XYL
WIRLSNANI LHON
IVILENANI LHDIT
IVIYLSNANI LHON
¥iS

S

WIMISNIONI LHOI
uis

uis

s

TVIMISAONI LHON
uis

Ui

Ui

LdWIXT XYL
TVINLSNONI LHON
TVILLSNAN -ONYT LNVIVA
TVIMISNANI LHOI
a*snpue

311 N LNIWLSIANI TYRILSIANI LSHI4
AHdUNW H138vZI13

©0J NOSIG3 HLIVAMNOWWOD
T13M31ddOd SITIAHA '8 GIAVA
NRVYWH31 WV

§S5 YAINID 40 INVE ILVLS
Y3IHION TIVHOIN

IT130Vd ¥¥1dOd €02

ZIHIWVYE NOWYE 3 DHONVIITY
VAVINOW 014380y

LLY®303 NYIHE

17 SIONITI A0 SISIMJYALNT LIWWNS
40 39VTTIA VHOUNY HLHON

271 3AING ANVIH3AO0 00T

NOO0J VIHLNAD '8 QIAVD

JTALNVA 48

ANV HDIVIS LHIROH '8 HDIVIS
YZ¥4Q34 YNNIONY
AMISIWUSNANITB R

137905 TIAHIHD

ANLOO 9 LY3IAO0H B NVLMNOJOULIN
NOL3IDNIYd OT9 ST143S D71 S31LHIJOHd LVA
NOILYDOSSY SHINMO 3DHIWINOD 40 AHYd AVMTIOL
SVOUVA INVIQ '3 STHONY

00ZOHO NvAUR

NI DY31d F T132dANVD

4135 X010 7 HSITONI HLIGNT
ZIHONYS VIIVIA

AVMTIVY 34 VANYS '3 NHIHLHON NOLONNENA
dd3Y NAT3A3 'F QUVMOH
D50D3IFYO AHVIARSOY

ZNHD SNsar

71T MW3N Y3LIIN 0D
OT1SLNIWLSIANI 3LYLS3 W3 NIV
HIW3ANVE VHVD B NOSHIWI

Q0 NOSIO3 HLTYIMNOWWOD
AVAVZS MIHONY

L1INYNE VSSITAW

DISMOQYS HIINNIN

NONNVYD HVdVS

DNNOA YNNMOD 7 INVd
OVIVEVHYD HOLJIA '3 53A3Y YHINVA
NVYOIAL NYSNS B AIAVa

NY3aoTI8 YL¥390H '8 H43sor
SOOVAS NOUYHS

Ql38 AONVN

$i934 100N

ONIS31LHId0¥d hS B A

11 32V1d YY1dOd £0T

4470M aiAva

ALOHLNY SNYYL D34 AlQ SNE Nvaunans advd
NOSNHOF 3NILSIHD

0D NOSIG3 HLTYIMNOWWOD

VSOH VINYIN '3 SYOUVA NVAVHE
ATNAIV HINYTS LHAA0A B 43NVIS
YINVEID VAHSOM

mnostt

ONIMYIN SN0 '3 NY3LSIM SDNIUdS
40 39VT1IA VIOHNY HLUON

NOSN3E YXVIN

IAIMNNYX VSN

Z¥0 ZaNDIYNI

QUVHILIY NILYH

40 39VT1IA YHOHNY HLYON

71 DVd HY1dOd 507

§1934 TOJIN

HIHLOH TEVHIIN

SN3AZLS AddnG

UYIAOS ATU3BAIDI B 83

51934 I100IN

HANVAVY ISIWVHA '8 VIZ

VNIGIW AHLONOO

SONININND AYVHIIY

5531135 J71 S3LNIJONd NI AVLS
NONNYH T3INVa

GNYTHO 3DINVC B QTWNOY

YN 104D ¥ NHO

12181510 Hvd AFTIVA XO4

AVAVZS MIYANY

L7 SIONITTI 4O SISRIdHILNS LINWNS
ATNQ3H NvOT

Bwensaumg

SZO-TOv-+0-ST
£00-092-50-5T
€00-TOP-pO-ST
BOO-TOE-¥0-ST
ST09ZE-H0"ST
T00-952-40-5T
¥00-8L4-50-ST
Ob0-00t-SO-ST
TZ0-9Z€-#0-ST
200-92E-F0-ST
LZO9ZEFOST
OZ0-TSE-FO-ST
6S0-00%-SO-ST
ET0-TSE-HO-5T
OT0-TOE-¥0-5T
TZO-TSEVO-ST
TZ0-T0Y-O-ST
gY0-F0E-¥0-ST
YEQ-00t-50-ST
E00-9ZE-¥0-5T
TE0-1s€-pD-ST
100-082-50-5T
¥Z0-TOr-#0-5T
T00-TOE-PO-ST
920-9ZE-+0-ST
¥20-TSE-+0-ST
TT0-9TE-HOST
S10-TOE-pO-ST
STO-TSE-PO-ST
B600-T0E-¥0-ST
¥00-TOE-H0-ST
LTO-TOE-b0-ST
Z2O-TOFH0-ST
ETO-TSEPO-ST
TEOGTEHO-ST
TOO-TSE-PO-ST
SO0-3L4-S0-ST
B00-5ST-00-5T
TTO-TOE-O-ST
$00-08Z-50ST
ZT00-08T-S0-ST
9T0-TOE-PO-ST
BTO-9ZE-b0-ST
EZ0-9ZE-0-ST
0Z0-9ZEH0-ST
PIO-TOE-HO-ST
LEO-00K-S0-ST
T00-BLY-SO-ST
S00-00b-50-5T
BOO-ZSE40-ST
8TO-TSE-HO-5T
£00-TOE-¥O-ST
TO0-00b-S0-ST
¥20-9Ze-40-ST
TO-TSE-PO-ST
800-8Ly-50-ST
BEO-00P-SO-ST
6€0-00b-S0-ST
TOO-TOE-P0-ST
S00-08Z-50-ST
TT0-ZSE-H0-ST
LI09ZEHO-ST
900-10€-40-ST
Z00-TSE-YO-ST
900-00v-50-ST
SE000F-SO-ST
E00-BLY-SO-ST
€E0-BZE-HO-ST
ZI0-T0E-+0-ST
9E0-00b-SO-ST
610-9Z€-PO-ST
820-9ZE-b0-ST
6T0-9TE-4O-5T
T00-8Lb-50-5T
SO0-TOE-+0-ST
£00-TOE-40-5T
£T0-TOE-FO-5T
£00-T82-50-5T
900-8Lp-50-ST
LIO-TSEHD-ST
200-8LY-50-ST

Ndv



RAIARIS WWIDRINADD TYNDILYN

Ajod ASentld DS O SULIB] ~BOAIBSE) SIS || '52I2NJ8 S1t JO/OUR UOLIRI0AIOT [B1PURBUIL VBDLIBUIY 151 OZ0ZE «IBLL URIIIUIY IST]

aaosdun sn djoyH

L

LS

»b

SLISZ LL5. 08 9 6 1z 4601 .

e
- plomAey ‘uosiad ‘ssauppe Yaquinu Japio Aq yoless ..O 1S hu_..m_u &

i . ¥ Bl ~» 0D a B e yoress-Auadoid/wodysiyfauep 8 D - D

X Pal s + x vpreas Auadord | susluey [ X aiboon - Aunc ) Ricine yuoy ©

-



ot W7-4274780

Floor Services

DAILY HERALD secTioN 5 PAEE 7

' business & service ' Prmatsdeswic iy sl

[

ALL REPAIRS
Giutler Claaning

Intwrad, bentind.
(847)962-5862
Hauling

BUDGI

30 p.m. :directory

30a.m. -4

ICES v g et st legals@ iy herald.com o ca BA74274671. rarsM - F B

DECEMBER 10, 2020
«

legal not

THURSDAY,

A =
T
SRl | [0
Ty e
LR E IR IR hmmm%?mw, gt il Mmmmmwm_m ;
aefgEs  EEEE I m "3 mmwm-mwm mmmw gt hmm rwﬁmmm mwmmmm-mmmmmmmmmw nmmmm I ummwmmwum”w At mmwmmmmwwmmmmmm,-umw i
ShEkEs mmmmmnm_m AT E w:mmm mmmm mmw rmmwmm“mn m wwmmmmw%wm i ;Mm .wwm mmmmmmmmﬁmum& £if 3
Sl | am_w i e mmmwmmm me Mwmmw mwmmmmmmw%mmmmmwww,%mmmmmwmm.,_mmmwwmmmmmmwwm mmmmmmwmwmw_w Hmw |
wEPEREEES | | S8 R ¥ ] i SL I R, (il it o
 E um_mw Ee T H RS mmmmm Mm Mm il mmmu_m“m Emm mz Mmmwmmmwmwmmmwwmm 1! mmmw_mwm h Mm“wmwwﬁmmm wm-mmm me
e mm_m HELIRIRRY mmmmmmMmmwmmmmmwmmwmﬁmmmmmwm uMmmmwm%,ummwmwmwmm mwﬂmm wmmwmmmmmmwmwwmwm iyt §
SEfERis || B2 R § [ i _ﬁhﬂm it st *Mﬁ [t
P e e mm_m; TR L mmmwmmmmm mmummmm T wmmmm d _,wmmmm:mwmm_w@ i wmmmmmmmam il mm%m, AT
o P slalsE T [R5 23 :5x- c-xgez-s B g 1 ] i ;m“ pelsgasy s-
mmmuwmmum Sl 5 i aiiE L_:mmwmm.mwmmmmmmmhw mmmm_mt mmmmm.m m:.mmmmwmm hmwmmmm T mumm nmmmwmww wm%mnmm
Bl nie e
BEEEEESLEEE 5 AL RN T i .mm . it qmmm il mnmnmwi_
|_SSeRsmesoln 2Rl o )50y mmﬁm_ il mmmmm il Ew ki i :ﬁ.m R mM
BB op RL | e T s e gl bl
gt LINNEE Sl
T s&8| & } : 1 1S i3 sl iy T Byl m
= ceennl b T mmmmm il Mmmwm.v mmw il H.__LMRM T mw wmmm it MEM
B L ln it G S O ] B ESESEE a“ Em oD ok B RN b
frt ey mm i W.hmm il wmw,, %wwmm = ?;Mmmwm% e il i b _mmmw ey
G s Bl L b il [ o gl i)
ol B arm; Sl B mmmvg -k % Lodt W R RN
iE Tmm%_ m_u_m g it e ot e e ) o hnHin el il 7, M.m_mw
= mm_..; o =pagiect Z 2 > e u!._wm.uummn% 52 nﬁ.m,.ﬁ.um.w, Enilahiiiny Sl i Bl Gin apalipity
bl W U e O ey e




PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION

EUCLID BEVERAGE (TBD @ Overland Drive)

PARCEL 1:
THAT PART OF LOT 2 IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE LYING WESTERLY OF THE WESTERLY LINE

OF LOT 1 OF TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE RESUBDIVISION NUMBER 3, IN THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:
THAT PART OF LOT 1 IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE RESUBDIVISION NO. 1 LYING EASTERLY

AND NORTHEASTERLY OF THE EASTERLY LINE OF LOT 1, IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE
RESUBDIVISION NUMBER 2, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.



PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION

VALLEY GREEN GOLF COURSE

PARCEL 1:

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH,
RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF
SAID QUARTER, 175.02 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN ANGLE OF 85
DEGREES, 40 MINUTES, 0 SECONDS TO THE LEFT WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4
100.29 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH PARALLEL WITH SAID WEST LINE
200 FEET; THENCE WEST AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE 100 FEET TO THE
WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO A POINT 20
FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE
EASTERLY ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 90 DEGREES, 32 MINUTES, 0 SECONDS TO THE
LEFT WITH A PROLONGATION OF THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE 2263.02 FEET TO A POINT OF
CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF
349.26 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 383.68 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE
CHICAGO, BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD COMPANY; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST
LINE 745.27 FEET TO A POINT 390.15 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST
1/4; THENCE WESTERLY IN A DIRECT LINE 2465.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; IN THE
TOWNSHIP OF AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER
SECTION 1325.80 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF SAID SOUTHWEST
1/4 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID QUARTER
SECTION 20 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 89 DEGREES 28
MINUTES TO THE RIGHT WITH THE PROLONGATION OF THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE 2,263.02
FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT
HAVING A RADIUS OF 349.26 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 383.68 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE
RIGHT OF WAY OF THE CHICAGO, BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD COMPANY; THENCE
SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE 190.35 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH
1/2 OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, BEING A LINE FORMING
AN ANGLE OF 89 DEGREES 49 MINUTES TO THE RIGHT WITH THE PROLONGATION OF THE LAST
DESCRIBED COURSE, 2573.67 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF
AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.



Map Amendment Standards

Application for Map Amendment

1. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the existing use and zoning of nearby property?
Yes, we are requesting a change in the zoning from the R-1 Single Family Residence to the O-R-I
Office, Research, Light Industrial District. Many of the adjacent and surrounding properties are
already zoned ORI, and we would be contagious with that zoning designation.

2. Does the proposed amendment diminish the existing zoning of the subject property? No, the
proposed amendment will not diminish the existing zoning of the subject property because the
development will be a first class industrial building that will be adequately shielded as necessary
from the single family zoned property that is across the street to the north. The amendment will
allow the development to occur immediately.

3. Does the proposed amendment promote the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and
general welfare? Yes, the proposed amendment shall allow for the project to be built in
conformance with all applicable laws and codes and shall have no negative effects on public, safety
or the general welfare.

4. Does the proposed amendment provide a relative gain to the public, as compared to the
hardship imposed upon the applicant? Yes, the proposed amendment provides a relative gain to
the public as it will provide significant tax revenues, potential employment opportunities and shall
increase commerce to the already existing businesses in the community.

5. Is the proposed amendment not feasible for development as it is presently zoned? The
proposed amendment is not feasible for development as it is presently zoned because industrial
development is not allowed on property zoned R-1.

6. Has the property in question been vacant, as presently zoned, for a significant length of time
considered in the context of development in the area where the property is located? The
petitioner is looking to assemble two properties, one of which has been vacant forever, and one of
which was vacant until the current owner received a Special Use for a golf course. By assembling
these two properties and completing the map amendment, the properties will be developed with best
in class industrial buildings, which will create perpetual value for these two land sites based on the
fact that an owner can build improvements on them.

7. Is there evidence of community need for the use proposed by the applicant? The community
will benefit from development due to the increase in taxes that are generated. There is also strong
demand for Class A industrial buildings in this particular location due to the proximity to I-88.

8. Is the proposed amendment consistent with the comprehensive plan? The proposed
amendment is consistent with the comprehensive plan. The properties shall be developed adjacently
to properties currently zoned in the Office Research Industrial District and in the Limited Industrial
District and the General Industrial District. The project shall enhance the overall community with
the development of first class industrial buildings that will provide significant tax revenue for the
community.



9. Does the proposed amendment benefit the residents of the Village as a whole and not just the
applicant, property owners, neighbors of any property under consideration, or other special
interest groups? Yes, the proposed amendment provides a relative gain to the Village as a whole as
it will generate significant property taxes, potential employment opportunities and shall increase
commerce to the already existing businesses in the community.

10. Does the proposed amendment avoid creating nonconformities? Yes. The petitioner has
worked to develop a project that complies with the O-R-I zoning code, avoiding as many
nonconformities as possible.

11. Does the proposed amendment remain consistent with the trend of development, if any, in
the general area of the property in question? The proposed amendment remains consistent with
the trend of development in the general area as the property to the south and to the west have already
been developed similarly to the proposed amendment.

12. Are adequate public facilities available including but not limited to, schools, parks, police
and fire protection, roads, sanitary sewers, storm sewers, and water lines, or are public
facilities reasonably capable of being provided prior to the development of the use which would
be permitted on the subject property if the Amendment were adopted. The project shall create
very little demand on public facilities. Since this is not a residential use, schools, parks, police and
fire will have minimal impact by this project. The project will utilize the existing sanitary and storm
sewers that run adjacent to the property. The petitioner is also conducting a traffic study to assure
that the roads are able to handle the traffic generated by the project.



Qzozee el

i ‘el01nmy yuoN ancus eneo m
ueld a31g 1dasuo) 8S.N0Y |0 BI0INY YLION SNdO &
ooy 002 00L O @

0z

W@ sAva gl - 998

S S6L'0Y
"D ONIgTIng
EIT

SINNHIA
AON3OUENA HO AIND




1744 A8

de Ajuin
003 e 05 0 @
f '
¥4 =01
i aumny
¥EL papianig
s180
¥ s100Q ul-eAuQ
50} o)
65 y30Q ss0L0Y
05 H1ea aoq
siepes)
o sjeeq
18 561'80F eary 5 Buping
seioy 62°92 8ys o Buiping
Z 3SYHd - D ONIQING
€9¢ leloL
[:]*4 anjng
Shi papiaoig
siBQ
v s100(] uj-eAuq
z9l teo}
06 %000 S0V
2L lleas deeq
ssajel]
¥5 sypo0Q
15 BEQ'EVS Bl g Sujpiing
860y 22'g¢ Boly alg
oys g Buping
1 3SVHd - 8 ONIQING
-] sien
z ss00Q ul-eAuq
] sisjlelL
L]} spoq
1582601 eely v Guipying
§8.0V 6G'9 eus v Suiping
1 3SVHd - ¥ ONIGTING
SeL0V 6'8 letoL
sany 0'Z aimyng
saiy €9 pepiacig
uonuejeq
9'0 Hvd

§5118'950't eany Buipiing EroL

sany g1'/9

Bely alig

NOLLYWHOZNI LO3rodd

T e — TR

71 "BIINY WJON

8SIN0Y JI09) BIOINY YUON

|.\\\\//
all} _
T : N ETD
1. “M_ _-3-”—
e |
= § voooos ~

SNdo @

-+

'.‘-
W




L1

133H8

aNoIHO
‘A NMYHO
WA
D Twos
TEFET v

VIr26-02L11

“ONEOF "ON LOWONd

NV1d
JdYOSANVT
AUYNIWITSNd

o abieman

P s v e |

ey eu e s
o e T o

PR

o 10 uede 3 ey et
4 g pom a Lz
= ocpa paas
Hevo eemy asni o4 e g

TR g & poppand
-

qwa

e e e -

TP R

w1 A w0 0 2y

(2 e ot s
ol v

o
s

vousoon e g Aresveceu Aovete apmist
Ty o L o, e e et o] 31T
L ilen

ADNYIBMVNIS 70335 ML Aws
LNV MVELE ¥
X Q35 SIVEY ANONOSD

AIHNYIE MVLS § AN OL 318EN E

1INYIE MYLS 9
XN (535 93N OL 1M

L2NVIE MVAIS 13N T98n0a [
XM ATI9GNVILM

i
X O INFOUENI H

#- ANEHSNIRIOUIAD 1HOMAN @Bab
2 * BNEHS NESUONIAT [ )
<2 BNUHS SNONOKA oy

88 01.0¢ - aNuHE BNONaIDa )
2- 331 NIONINT
"1 ST - 33YL TYANSIVNHO

97 TRIL AVMSV

-92- 3341 3AVHE SNONIDEA

aN3937

e

3
(woailiany | ¢ muowsug ¢ 'opwys a)
WP PZPOpMAId  D'EZ « Oy kY PP CH8 - 90AIL
W03 046 = oy Apadosd Wam

GRMG001 PRI ORI = £ 49 POPIIP DG - SIAYE
{usnutimaz 09 epwis 0)

oL ZL PO O'F) =0 AT PRRIAR OBy + s0a1.

101 00p = oug kuedasd nog:

L]

SQANS Z1CPOPADIY  DZIE = £ AQ PPIND 2B ~ AU

(Amabions £1 ¢ mBIRWO § ‘SpS 2
woiLyZiRepRid  H'CE = OF AQ PORP 0B - MsaiL
0.1 000 = oy Apiadcad vz

SNUS 219 PN 115 = £ 4Q PIOWD YE9'L - SIS

[Uonifen 52 3 MUBLIRLQ § "SpwiS )
SRLLEEPOAN  FIC = OF A3 PRaR veY'L - semiy
oy pea's » oy Auvdard yos

g put L)

L4 ey auys -.:ﬂ ? o

(MGG @ § BPRUS P
g efain i ld o o ed S00i10Z:PoRAAd  SUL = Qb A§ POPIP CLL - AL
¥l W84 24 = aug Auadoud mop
IIIII..lc SONNS 0OL AOPMCL]  £'90) =T Aa POPINP ew - manmg

P g Ty il (haa)Bian3 g (MUCUELO Z WHRE 2)
Do) GLpepROL B ¥L = OF AQ POPIA 60 - S
o428 ors o e, 4 e 103 069 = Guy Apradaid 1ee3
VeammE

o q Luormdeas )
. e P ln et umapioy
moarot] RPN
ool s sy s NS e Papal T =5A50- PG
011 4 :poppsald 50 = 07 A9 popiip 107 - a0alL
Lr=rn 1981 102 = oBepsciy 10 Bupped
et ) v ed wGnap 59 0y J0d sag | usuenbey
NP BwRpa | 15 1 Bupied
R ) g ipappald 7 = 0r A POpp 828
0¥ mdeag | Jewesbey
W0462¢ » ] PUIBAC
« o v e )

o

11 W D woge e 30 g ond 6 . oo

Toana e “unpere e

1oenomy sdmmpe
Ay oy g 3 501S LS S0 NYOHYLE NVORTIYY VR TV
A OV A O Inmpe0 S S B0 Y AR e s s A 0 UL

9G] BZ5 ‘PamAGd Saa)} SZ9 = 000°1 AN PRPIND SHE'0TS
45 000'k 200 308 | umaORY

45 Y2926 = vy edmoepus] oL

L)

4S 816701
VY ONITING

oY Vi

me 3N HOLYIW




i Ilujmnﬂ §§ B - .
i” “"‘a? N < w 55 N
Eé .! l'} @ g gn_z §§ % \
i R sl 2
i |8 |1111114]] 828 B |jElaatife

é

7777 q‘l}
7777
oA |
E — m oy — \
F{ I e W™ 175

— s % g s
) ——

=% -

——— lrzrrrrms ) oA
— Cp

; ===

— == —_—

— o o =z
— %
— = ) o
‘@ (QUUOUINEIULLBUILG | 9 oy ITe
Qo 0 o 0 o2 o:0o |

MATCH LINE - SHEET L-3




- oo «% ] Anl T
m“ I— [ % | \“ ﬂ\_ o ~(|\-’ Pl.w’ \I Y = d Ii .
— += 1-T133HS - SN HOLYW - _ A e
o @ <G . N e
e ] HINNIIES SO EEEE oSRTERTE
=5 | S LMIANIRIL Resed 8T TR =
o || | T ——— s 2 SEAAAE
2dVOSANYT ' : e S 6 o eusara
AUVNIANMSNS o . N “ n e Y
=== . |

1]
o

4S 961807 ZE ¥
0 ONIaTiNg - :
yNLN

TR

1

@

O T

MATCH LINE - SHEET L-2

)
A

3 TRTTTSTITTRT T TR
5o° dlll

T %doo allll

vdouny N
HLYON

TR T et
Ween o mopen i

SNOISIAZY

[ e

I s e s ey 0

T S ey et o




133HS
IMIHD
TN
B UENNYR
Tomr A0S
320 - TUL)
VIrZ6e-0gi11 ae Gon
B ] D pommey s oy
'ONBOf “ON 1D3rQdd . ey
SNOILYDIAIDAdS J——— w P el b vty
3dVOSANYT wz (o pcany wating) oypm weNRG
SAILVN S sto 10 20l s
%0 {0p peaspmag) s wmiRg
1 L33 oIy § yong) S mnagud
reak wap 1 Lnot faseo ) Mg B
[ erp—— - om0 e e o v e
o Gusmon
B e 3 e o) vopany o i ui-cm) i v a0 o ) g oy
@ () e vl e wr [
ubyeaq UonEeice 9 g 1) 3, =2 T SNEAION LOKROD] WO LIRS .13 (PUSMATROUR) DY RIBD B
o () e o)yt it @) [ e
= Gt s sty o wz o mapr) 1 map
= ol (o) DAl ovissent aniacy il Doy 001 40e WHeARIR BNV
it i iy w0 tncpng e v g w ey geoc) e sy
e LA s onegpasu o oy ong Contad woaniza @z (omsery g ot sy
hoviomy . /P L] L4 (MIIIAI00 FaG) OGN G0S) IICAND) 43 (o v om ) ‘i muny
oul sy M| =4 as s i o (5o e e oy
har i y Ptk plarprfmbey
nowihang i) o0 iwwy =28 o] wom vy w0
an G A e gy
. -t o UMKO) STAS MY «me  wiol
ipad: ‘PRPAYE 0 a) vam Agiup. g (B P e LW
- 0 T g s
o Tau NAGD RrvcabL
i (94 P e
ame 1m0 mogh owe ey wx o
T (swupn jmo) s wring
. 1o 1arwcams i T
o e swa) sy e
o &% ity s o pomd o) man wig
m g @i 0 ) mavvam sy
Pacol 39 |t ey au wi e oar) o muienice et 10 S st ot
Papad sauuajupen eal-aas & PG ML) LIt Iy o L} wnerg sy
el “sapwce "y o 9 i o) wesepeume il (800 o o) T D
w1 (ars oo el ko mamy x (ok A ) eyt sk
. wn (g mas W) ey maemen [ o 3 W) M!S
e = o (Lo D) ke ey we g =y eriny
o TACNZY “woiajuisy YR eIt w2 (a2 oy ppmac sy iy
T 5 L (0peg Axvwn) weompo mary
. L o SO TR
VARG DRVAORS T pads by prm "I SEMPUTT DR LD PRIRINGY P ALY LI
- o 1M 0338 ANINIA ANONODD  WTEd ROV
e el e g1 9 2@ iy - e
oramoswl 3 o ) (e ) woe 32 TN OS¢ 30 GNV 1T
0 (ot o o ey
g e . o wc w paonas 8 A wu o
100 paRg. paypadt h (cmapyl ucumoo) meus SN b omy) RAMPTS) wnamden nymmn
‘2 ooy pun ‘slegg s Ay 21 (Passemon ySwad wach olopsos & VOO LORNIGD) WARIo PRROMIGALY.
o or (o D S e o (pamspre it wctane e
‘Posul H s "" E-ﬂi‘l‘"lﬂf!i "a g%ﬂlﬂ-!
P— PR35 3G Jou (I SIS 0 5 ol R 9D Uy e I 04200 i) naceuy RIRALS) Bk
we e s e e we (md weteo) e v
o o Lo T i @t e v e
. @z (e G Wmwrom v ws oman padstema) o oy
Reiond e @ (arnng padz Yo i) Mo gy ot oy scgnid et o
& @ 10D LnRD P «n mhy
" wr oy pad- 3ol W RSP oy (poporug) i f wd oggpinag
Soiecknded (el 8 e (g o) Ko e wl RO Al Oben e
ary R RN VU] g WO i _iﬂ‘n‘!
) =0 [y Lm0l mursrls wilopecull T fpy  wmaspmd i’
“4aEP R 19 0 oY 99 IS BV SIUL e o D P U o oa e e O St
e VILIB) 1m0 DRA/DAL ell Areuen Goa1 DI PAIILIN KOG ITG o et e et e o e N v e ey
PR s s s g ) T3 Y SRS SO 313 POYiRg R B n i s g Dopeey AR mpcn Evgader w0z “Umaewt axmiatng w0100 BN
VidLSNANI i s fopnred i it s s ¢ w Tt oy
PUE AR ason . | umuwa pass ‘ol pajug you . oy DO EURAIN) UV WY L3 (htt BTG #Oul) MmN Mg
vHOHNY |} e ’ n —— 5 oy B e
P UCURIO puE agt N0y v Xekope b b
HLHON I 511 52003500 gl iR A P PN WO 30 . . B ot iy e s W i e e
TR L Lo B Aoyt 1) $3) 20§ 030 BB 1003 348G 20 . R4S Bhrion amibeues) s 4 A ) B
I an0d jLM/pe1 ‘sl Amutd padi 'y h e £0 oy pumpug aps) Sostm-smau My oL b P dapi) Wagi-uncls IR
W Kol St ) Pk ot 5 DL Bt Ty ot T s R d
R s =i (poaut Aol ey iy
z v -y 1 [ -t b pereaet
St RGO v o5 heemrua) el azuavy
o Mo
“{pouad makaaig au) anp 21 W pur Lodsunn B Fajpd FoR (o P e -~
a t o (080 prag) e sy
— bed ) oy you o3 pass poal ajoweid oy Paioyscs aq 1ey uopmiedud ol AioRepes awmapn Ao & (0 o) o o
J U e STt pun 4D ARG pRuscjind 80 [ s 90 Rk T owo (70 ) s iy
®n o
N i g sl g ®T D RO hLc) amAsed e WA AMrYMO ML
P opan Ny it uodsay T wy (s o | s wnemtog
p ] 4 e e ol e an (g i) e v
SNOISIAZY umeq 13 Pt P FURAA] iongs. Ay az (unsan s s eryaions upwhe il
i v ey 95) vapads wi 1505 10 s o L0 oy (900 ywove) arvei v
w (05 o) ey wr o v e s e
—————— L34 (3¢ ae5 amesl e saary or I 40005 mpw ) 16 )y
iy b ol (19025 vanbry ) wasegmoeo s @y (oungy w00 B3} rsmcuna moerog
e 'S Y t ek we TN ) e ooy o (a0 i) mododagry
mi"-m.ululmm N “spaspurts aweuopad faynbas TWPNEIOHAYA . Y 4 UV VIR LY AN
nllu! e o Lond “aﬂ: vopmedaiays  ERTYW WWTOCS TR WO R TRARST 7RI
Ry e ] 1335 JHmid
BN ominY e iy o . con o g 00 ity
= i SHEBSIHN RS = I G358 eWvad ANG OL OISR
ot | | _ CATRLISV Gonmd THIABOVRVA WAKSINAL o ST O S SERIdAC 61 SR
oIt B DY ML ST 130U YRR 8 RO



0 eva s ATNG S3S0didNd M3IA3Y HOA =
sebu
TO9¥-Z$9 (0£9) XV ‘0095259 (0£9) “ANOHI ..&iﬂxro_.

€1£09 "Il '2A0ID S12UMA(] *D0E S ‘PY PIRYIUNE EEET ooy Yo __-u.mw_.-.s

SHILVIDOSSYV -
WANITH 2 90DV \\Q Bip _ﬁ, ﬂuﬁ u___mw.. N s

= o ReNd
27 Y ¥ YE =N
SHOSKY NI

-

:

- =
v T

s A

e e umule

——y . —— VNI TR R S N

] =t [

bk —— — L 1 VT W |

-] o e

oot & -2 A

TRE W & & L. 2 MAOWD EDAN A

RN 0 2 a OO MR

N A PN B WO et » L L ) L)

L ET Y 4 IO WA N

LT J——— f————-

iy P 4 — X

"am e el

€ NY1d AIMIIN ASVNIAIT3Yd 89 @ . i 3 e

7 NVId AN ANVNINT3Nd 20 ) - ¥ Ee=i:

L NVId AL ANVNINITISd ) T . o

£ NYId ONIQVED ASVNINIZHd 9 8 - : ——— -
7 NY1d ONIOVHS AMVNINITINd = o e H ————
| NY1d ONIKIVHS ANVNINI3dd ¥ o o v 2 _—
T NVId JRLINOZ9 ANYNINMZNd £ W o — s
Z NVId ORLINOZD AMVNININZNd » - o > —— ———im 3
L NYId OMLINOZO AMVNINIIZNd 1 ; 5 Lo ——

4300 © @ BNISRT OGS TRORE e icaw
CIHTRRECT Jaquiny jeays L oo
S|qpt 381 99yS h
¥
I PO s
alng N9IS3a Sndo
[
SIONITTI 'YHOBNY HLUON

Hod

SNV1d LNIW3AOUdINI 31IS AUVYNIWNITIUd

ge/aL/LL
ANINA013A303Y 3SHNDD 109
J8rZd




08 = T

oe¥ad

HU-TSVIOE0H XV COP-ZSY [D0Y: ANOHE

STS0¢ L 40 1UROQ "D MO P PI2Y

|-

£y

STIIVIDOSSY

SIONITT! ‘VIOANYV HIJ4ON

TIINg NDISIA SNdO0
LNIRJOTIAIAAT ASHN0D JLI0D V0NNV HIVON|

T NVId OIILANOED AUVNIWITZNd |HINATH % OOV

UonADeg
MW 403 IS 1

SNOSASH LIGD| 2

= mho

=1 TNE S

N

L

Cinf

-1
1
]
i
!
-
-3
1
4 b
i
L=

-

}L_____

G
Ly

IJ,EI
e T,
R

I | .
1 i t | 1
[
1 1 i 1
- ] il 1. L i
Femdemobod
] 1 ]
[ ] —
b
o __,A.Aﬁ A
1
] g B
i -
EE— I
i }
I R A [
1 t ] i !
i . 1 1 i
St o=
R
i 1
i 1
- .
I - . T T
i I
| [
Z L il L
y-. U fustel Bhu
ol : 0o n
L_‘._'.._..L_lnL-A.___.._l [ SRR Y ALY NN
|
- 1
T T T
g , i I
1
\
o L —L
B [
i
)
1
+ L.
' 1
1 i
i i
1
]
]
]

DN oy WU R W 9107 @ WopKteo




09 = .7

oB¥ed

®

— - —mm— - ——m - — - —]

E

:)vf]/»‘

T
1

A I

e S '

= i

At U Lol

STILVIDUOSSY

1091260 f0191 XYL 00924y (DP9 ANCHL
S1509°1 400 seamor g sy P PSR CEEL

-
]
T
__4___s.-___.__xl-~.._4._._- f——
|
i
]
1
1

1
i
L
|
|
!
1
1
!
#
I
1
1
1
1
! [
1
!
!
!
1
!
1
|
!
1
I
!
1

-

SIONTTII ‘Vi0dNV HINON
aIINng NMISIAd Sido

T T

¥
®
3

g NVId OIILANOTD XUVNINITIMd |HSNATH ® €0

INARJOTIARAIS HSUN0D JT0D VAOUNV HIAON|

[T

MW 10d eI
SHOK W 1IGTB| 2
L]

Ll
%

B

DM 'S010R0SSY MgeH ¥ GEIOF GLIT @ 19BpMdod



|
|
i

=t

-

T TTRITITITIITY

NNy

|

i
IDWCE9 (044} Y4 QUIPZEO DEW ANOHA
$1504 11 240ID MAUADQ DOE WIS P PN £51
SEIVIDUSSY

e

e

PR SO DS DU S

MR

T AT

P
l

SIONITII ‘VH0dNY HIJON
@Ing NOISId SNdo

_!l_ﬂ—._lxn.

J__.m B

€ NVId JIMIANOED XYVNINITANd |SINJHH ¥ SOOVE
L
1

INARJOTIAIQHY HSUN0D J10D VIOHAV HIYON|

=
[

P S

1
1

-+
'
'
!
i

4
]
1
I
s
I
|
i}

1
[
]
i

R W P
1
i
1
|

R s el

i !
i
1
LIS P,

————
I
s
3
L
)
T
1
I
L
]
1
'

[ Bt atatutak aitied

S -
=]

DM amtpamy By ¥ G GI0C @ 1BKECS




o

09 = T

o8¥ed

SIONFTTI ‘VI0dNV HIMON

10VH-E99 (0T XVl DOWTSY 1057 -ENOH

$1500 "L >4 VUMD 00E 4D P PPN FEFY
1
i

STALVIDOSSY
WANAFH ¥ €00Vl

]

@TIINE NOISAA SNdo

ININJOTAANGES @5an0D 410D VHOENV HLYO
T NVId DNIOVID AYVNINITIdd

_____L; e

i

R

1_____-_11-——-5-----'”1-!-
i

o=

EL
b e

S I e g,

=
ek
“hoap
-
1 i
1 Ll
] - 1
i _peepe
L E:
iy
N 1
N 1

o |
L

G Tty
b]

i

P
M ooty AW ¥ T 9102 ©

: .v}-v——

[ |
¥
——

3

R . T LI N

-
1

Wl O Ry MR-

)

O —— e

/==

I

T e,

A Ol Y

P \...W....h-ﬂ.xr ¥




S

09 =1

o8¥F2d

|
I

GBI (059) X 00U Z5 1DFH TNDILS
STLVIDOSSY

1509 11

SIONTTII ‘VH0dNV HIMON
JINnd NDISIA S(d0
2 NVId HNIQVYD XUVNIAITEMd |QENJIH 2 900Vl

INIRJOTIATAAY FASHN0D L10D VIOANV HLUON|

oN

Uopdyoneq
M3W bod 305si 1
SNOSWTE LD 2|

|_mod |
Zm
pZ/91/ 1!

e

T

) VI/ X T L e o PR e et T
gl . B R — iy, T
e - 0 i
—— i

AT ———l .

18
i- _ d | ) | -, I
R B I i = = - Ay - A $
— i | — A 1 i
= = - E—— I a
in, i T My TR,y BT SR R 1
. 2% . o i
; - b : »
pacEmE S . - ) ) ) — .k.ls . - - e A M
my) oo o SN B ],Iill«llvl.‘rl-..lalq o — ;Yuxoil- e SR e IIA P .M
- wox e O . A ., 1 .\ -D :
u.Jr!-..iI» e, ...I,... . o x . G, Wy M sy L ik v - - . 5 R ..,
_ Oy = . AL« s
: 4y (I i _\_ -t .
FRRN .
U v
,/,, //. I_ (7 -
/ ! ’/ / ol [ &
W Ls
= AR -T
I . /// A - P
o N ‘
1 -
| uh
L :
bl
n —_— —
i .
: 1
_ L
= __
i
1 -
; TS e . o
- 3¢ ./‘L : & '_ .
N N, N
-lk,.lltr.u ) oy . ’
EE o _ T Y ¥ T ¥ -
P N T T L. 5 . Ul
o o
e
Ny zy
e S
RO e e e W N B
o) -
i JI Nfemme




9RTSE ORI XY DGVE-T5H 0597 ANDILY
006

SRl

:H':)’ssv i
N ¥ goovi | A

I
|

M ‘magngaoRey s ¥ @090F BIOZ @ IEEdoD

e

SIONTTII V04NV HIGON
TINE NDISIA_Sndo
€ NVId DNIAVED XYVNINITHdd |

ANTWOTIAZATY HASYNOD L10D VHOANV HIJON|




09 = T

o8¥ed

re=1

BRI
10955 (BE9) 1KV OU-LS9 (0w ANDILL

SF0U U PA0KY NIuRAG ‘00§ TS FU MAUSRNG SEEL

STLVIDOSSV
JINATH ® 900V[ l

It Bttt ettt
il

SIONITII V04NV HIHON
aIIQd NDISId Sado

AN 80 35511
SNOISKIN LDz ]

LNTRJOTIAIAAS ISHA0D 10D VHOMAY HINON|

T NVId ALITILO AYVNINITHYd

I
1§
};-__ %

i

T
. eyttt iy BN PO

'
"I ‘seoossy ousy 3 o300 RIOZ © IbKdoy




(R T ;
09 = ,1 { i
28%24 _ __ v
! .
. | ‘
; | |
'
: | |
M ]
| , _
- ! ! | !
e ] | R R
1l|...lb.l|,ﬂ..|...,.‘..,ﬂ_ _ 2 > ——r ]
) _4 “1 h_q 5 e 1801 o). a0 . 20 1 201 #0L.
ol
il
p
s £
-
RN .=
| [ I Weminn L)
= ] A Sy e
- I 1 ] | : B | ' i : . 1
& vt i 1 1 1 P 1 ( 1
£ ! , | _
i 8 Y el “ b I
i i e e i A * +
13828 Bolbole ) : ! _ ! m "
HE AR 0o N O S O O
58 ! -
Fizo® i L B N e B Q _
HH: AU n o |
WMW« “ﬂ H " " w 7 " . T Illllllltlll.\.“.' Rt st it bbb St M e -T= 1 - ) m
2 ' ] !
i RN (SRR I S N (U NUUR AN SO A N SO .0 AN S N S SO WS SRS S - Ao
- “ “ ! . .“ ! | ) 1 1 i 1
] i i =+ 1 { ! ! I ‘
z AR AR i RV S VR S 5 IR .
\ 1
8 NN S A U OV S OO N PR S S S h
E S— i - e -
[ M b > |..“ O V|||"v|||..l|||..“ ey B S Suinis St Rl M S R A :
g _ o ! v : ! ! !
z| |8 B 1 ] i - S e S e e 3 S L= 1l !
e W m SN d 1 1 | ! ! ~ u
3% = P R T =2 CFN AU S L B S e e it Al e L= B S
mnm = NS 1 | ! ! 1 1 i 1 1 1 ! i
. o N ' 1 | 1 1 1 ' ' 1 ! !
maﬂ = AN H ; ! i H H i H s i ; A \
8)@|g T NN 4 T —7 ) T, % o L
gi8le| o I /.n// T T !
== i o~ ki G
.WNH (=] 1 [N . R
I.H“ H _. L. AR o I - N ] wu... - ) /
gl 3 S i b i
mnﬂ A 3 ﬁ?/ u ] — ]
& m = \ SAN IS /) 10 S— S— SN § ISR N (PR -
£ A Sf == = __ S |
m N { .e.‘ V 2 !-.ﬂ _“J pI— Nt RI———— M Ol R —————— 0t Ji] i—r———
5 ; =\ 44|h —————————
= //mﬂ//
: {)JVK/
3 &= )
m L T
w *
3
N

"ONI PIOR0SEY Jmyi 3 Q007 FLOZ @ IWORdoD



08 = 1

J8vad

|

g
10V-E5U (019, XVA O0URTSA (0Fv: ANURL
001
S5TIV¥IDOSSY

INAWJOTIAIOEE ASHN0D J10D VAOANV HIAON| "

SIONITII ‘Vd0dNV HINON
TONd NODISAA SNd0
€ NVId ALITIL) KYVNINITId | ENSHH 2 900Vl

MWy BOS 355 1
SO 1Ko Z)

1/

vieq
02/5/11)

RSN VRSP S
o v
F T
iE i
i

B

s s W

p_. __ R
I 1

i

[N IR SR

i
!
'

|
]
1
1

S B s
L

i

DN ENDEOSSY A R Q0N RIOZ @ WOPAIT)




1 “es01ny yuon #N0NR B0 L

0Z0Z°0E0L
suol1eA8|] Joualx] - ¥ Buipjing 9s1n0J }|OY BJOINY YUON SNdo &

08 = .1 ¥
NOILVAZTE 1S3Mm

N8 13A3Y 0£59 MS - O INIVd

3vOS OL ION

ASYHO €3M §20L MS - § LNIVd

IV QAN SZS9 MS - ¥ INIVd D

N
...:o.xuozv_momnn._ov___omuom%nﬂ“_ “ @ T o @
R
[

Ivanad .y 2 _
¥00d WIIW MOTIOH| 9 s
MOGNIM ANOISINTY| S| L — —ct
MOGNIM ‘WNTY G3ZICONV ¥V3T10|  ¥|
LINOYJIUOLS "WNTV O3ZIGONY ¥V3T1D| ¢

AJONVD “1LW GIHSINIdIYd| 2
JiNIVd - 13NVd 1sSVI3ud| 91
8 INIVd - "13NVd LSVOJdd! 4ai
V INIVd - 13NVd LSVOINd| Ei

QON3931 3LONAIX NOILVATR




0zoz'oe’oL

suoneas|3 Jouexg - g Buipjing

318 T3A3Y 0€59 MS - D LNIVd l
AJNO §3M S20L MS - 9 LNIVd I
UV QIIIRIVY TSI MS - V LNIVd D

HOLVIN OL GIHSINISINd - VD ONIdOD]  zi
3IOVNOIS ONIGTING IVILNILOd[ b}
HOO0a NFIARA ¥IXZY| 01
1N0-}00NM ¥00a X300 3uNind| 6
¥00a ¥20a .01%6] 8
IVIARN LY 2
¥OO0a W13 MOTIOH| 9]
MOGNIM ANOLSHTTD| ¢
MOGNIM "WNTY Q3ZIGONY ¥v31d| ¢
ANOY43NOLS ‘WNTY a3ZIGONY ¥v3T1o| €|
AdORVD “1LIW G3HSINIAZud| 2|
D INIVd - T3NVd LSvO3ud[ oY
£ INIYd - TINVd LSvo3ud| ai
V 1iIVd - 13NVd_1SVOTud| ®i|
L]

QGNZ937 10NAIM NOLLVAITA

i ‘BloMnY YUON oo wne0 s

854n02) 4|00 RIOINY YUON SNdo &

08 = .1 ¥ :
NOLLVATT3 LSV3

JFTVOS OL LON

08 = .1 L
NOILVATT3 HLNOS




S

PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

FOR
VALLEY GREEN SUBDIVISION
OF

AND
PART OF LOT 2 IN TOLLWAY PARK OF COMMERCE ACCORDING TO THE FLAT THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1888, AS DOCUMENT NO. 1928025, AND PART OF LOT 1 IN TOLLWAY PARK

OF COMMERCE RESUBDIMSION NO. I ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST 27, 1991, AS DOCUMENT NO. SIXDA6769, ALL WITHIN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, ==sme—...
TOWNSHIP? 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN KANE COUNTY, LLLINOIS.

T

!I:;i ﬂld §=‘

Egn 4

§ b
ié*i? Esg‘
j §s=:§§:;§'t

L

i Easéﬁé-sg

;ﬁ it
< !!ﬁ uﬁ gi i

LT

LEGEND

’4

§u~§§:

S
g ¥§ E;;ﬂ:gi gisisf

&
£ e T
rip !< gg.ggiﬁszgh B
.§£i§§§ %ﬁ%%ﬁizséiéggig
53852 8 &y
EE' Eiis it E!g

gsm.i ;;ssZE o 2:§§§'§§

-
[
2
sl
,/ﬁ/ [
gl
Al :
L1 '
“l !
¥ |
. gl
q 0 N -
i N
ll“ i 5
i |
i
| |
ol
’ll [
i L=
’u 1
i ll
11 H
| i ix
R
| — N\-:: . S =
 aREEge X -
i"'l T = E
' i
] 3
u! R
| ;
,k
mn
5
\
y
!
L e C e e e S e IO el sy
= = /A A
IS R
&y i
|
]




Traffic Impact Study
Proposed Warehouse Development

North Aurora, Illinois

Prepared For:

2 OPUS.

YOUR DESIEGN/BUILD PARTNER

December 28. 2020




1 Introduction

This report summarizes the methodologies, results, and findings of a traffic impact study
conducted by Kenig, Lindgren, O’Hara, Aboona, Inc. (KLOA, Inc.) for a proposed
warechouse/distribution development to be located in North Aurora, Illinois. The site, which is
currently occupied by the Valley Green Golf Course, is located on the north side of Overland Drive
approximately one-third of a mile west of IL 31 (Lincolnway Street). As proposed, the site will be
developed with three warehouse buildings for a combined total of 1,056,811 square feet. Access
to the development will be provided via two full access drives off Overland Drive.

The purpose of this study was to examine background traffic conditions, assess the impact that the
proposed development will have on traffic conditions in the area, and determine if any roadway or
access improvements are necessary to accommodate traffic generated by the proposed
development. Figure 1 shows the location of the site in relation to the area roadway system. Figure
2 shows an aerial view of the site.

The sections of this report present the following:

Existing roadway conditions

A description of the proposed development

Directional distribution of the development traffic

Vehicle trip generation for the development

Future traffic conditions including access to the development

Traffic analyses for the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours
Recommendations with respect to adequacy of the site access and adjacent roadway system

Traffic capacity analyses were conducted for the weekday morning and evening peak hours for the
following conditions:

1. Existing Conditions - Analyzes the capacity of the existing roadway system using existing
peak hour traffic volumes in the surrounding area.

p2 Projected Conditions — Analyzes the capacity of the future roadway system using the
projected traffic volumes that include the existing traffic volumes, ambient area growth not
attributable to any particular development, and the traffic estimated to be generated by the
full buildout of the proposed development.

Proposed Warehouse Development KLm
1

North Aurora, Hlinois



4 SIOULJIT ‘DLOANY YILON
t Jusuidojaaa(q asnoya.vy pasodod g

1 2an81yg

aonedI0T AIS




€ SI0UL]]] ‘DAOUNY YIION

§ juswdojaaa(q asnoyavy pasodod

7 2am31g IS JO MIIA [eLIBY




2. Existing Conditions

Existing transportation conditions in the vicinity of the site were documented based on field visits
conducted by KLOA, Inc. in order to obtain a database for projecting future conditions. The
following provides a description of the geographical location of the site, physical characteristics
of the area roadway system including lane usage and traffic control devices, and existing peak hour
traffic volumes.

Site Location

The site is located on the north side of Overland Drive approximately one-third of a mile west of
IL 31 and currently contains the Valley Green Golf Course and a vacant lot. Land uses in the
vicinity of the site are primarily industrial, with single-family residential homes and a
Commonwealth Edison easement to the north, vacant land and the Euclid Beverage warehouse to
the east, and the Pace Fox Valley Division building to the west. A three-legged (Trumpet)
interchange with I-88 at IL 31 is located approximately one mile southeast of the site.

Roadway System Characteristics

The characteristics of the existing roadways near the development are described below and
illustrated in Figure 3.

IL 31/IL 56 (Lincolnway Street) is a north-south other principal arterial roadway that provide two
lanes in each direction. At its signalized ‘T’ intersection with Airport Road, IL 31 provides an
exclusive lefi-turn lane and two through lanes on the northbound approach and a through lane and
a combined through/right-turn lane on the southbound approach. IL 31 has a posted speed limit of
35 mph, is under the jurisdiction of the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT), is not
designated as a Strategic Regional Arterial (SRA) and carries an annual average daily traffic
(AADT) of 19,400 vehicles (IDOT 2019).

Airport Road is an east-west major collector roadway that extends west from IL 31 and provides
one lane in each direction with a flush median in the center of the roadway between Overland
Drive (east) and IL 31. At its signalized intersection with IL 31, Airport Road provides an exclusive
left-turn lane and an exclusive right-turn lane. No exclusive turn lanes are provided at its
unsignalized intersections with Overland Drive East or West. Airport Road has a posted speed
limit of 35 mph, is under the jurisdiction of the Village of North Aurora and carries an AADT of
2,400 vehicles (IDOT 2018).

Overland Drive is a two-lane local road that serves the Tollway Park of Commerce business park
and intersects Airport Road at two locations (one on the east and another on the west). Pace Bus
802 has two stops on Overland Drive (one on the west leg and another on the east leg). Overland
Drive is under stop sign control at both intersections with Airport Road where it provides a shared
left/through lane. Overland Drive has no posted speed limit and is under the jurisdiction of the
Village of North Aurora.

Proposed Warehouse Development K ‘ m
4

North Aurora, llinois



¢ ainBiy L02-02 ‘oN qor

"Ju|‘suooqy’eJsH,O’uaiBpul‘Bius)

sioulj|| ‘eJoiny YlON

solysiiejoeiey) Aempeoy bunsixg Juswdo|sAeq 8SNOYSIEM

1NN a33ds- ¥
NOIS dO1S- T
TYNOIS Olddviil-
3NV TIAVEL - <—

N3O

37v28 Ol 1ON

¥a $S320V I9VH3IATE _
QI1oN3 © ¥a ONVINIA0 { ¥d 309VYd @ ¥d aNVINEA0

A |+ »
& Fr AN

(<]




Randall Road is a north-south roadway that in the vicinity of the site provides one-lane in each
direction. At its signalized intersection with Ice Cream Drive, Randall Road is widened to provide
an exclusive lefi-turn lane and a shared through/right-turn lane on the northbound approach. The
southbound approach provides an exclusive left-turn lane, a through lane and an exclusive right-
turn lane. Randall Road has a posted speed limit of 45 mph and carries an AADT of 17,700 vehicles
(IDOT 2018).

Ice Cream Drive is an east-west local road that serves the Tollway Park of Commerce to the east
and the North Aurora Towne Center and other businesses to the west. At its signalized intersection
with Randall Road, Ice Cream Drive provides an exclusive lefi-turn lane, a through lane and an
exclusive right-turn lane on the eastbound the direction. The westbound direction provides an
exclusive left-turn lane and a shared through/right-turn lane. Ice Cream Drive has a posted speed
limit of 35 mph and carries and AADT of 2,600 vehicles (IDOT 2018) east of Randall Road and
5,150 vehicles (IDOT 2018) west of Randall Road.

Existing Traffic Volumes

In order to determine current traffic conditions in the vicinity of the site, KLOA, Inc. conducted
peak period classification and traffic counts using Miovision Scout Collection Units on Thursday,
October 15, 2020 during the weekday morning (6:00 A.M. to 9:00 A.M.) and weekday evening
(4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M.) peak periods at the following intersections:

IL 31 with Airport Road

Airport Road with Overland Drive East and West
Randall Road with Ice Cream Drive

Overland Drive with Pace Fox Valley Drive
Overland Drive with Euclid Beverage Drive

Given the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the 2020 traffic counts were compared with previous
traffic counts conducted in 2018 at the intersection of IL 31 with Airport Road which revealed that
the 2020 traffic volumes on IL 31 were approximately 16 percent lower during the moming peak
and approximately 10 percent lower during the evening peak hour. Traffic volumes on Airport
Road were approximately 12 percent lower during the weekday morning peak hour and
approximately 19 percent lower during the weekday evening peak hour. As such, the traffic
volumes along IL 31 and Randall Road were adjusted by 16 and 10 percent and the traffic volumes
along Airport Road were adjusted by 12 and 19 percent during the peak hours, respectively, to
reflect normal traffic conditions.

The results of the traffic counts showed that the weekday morning peak hour of traffic occurs
from 7:15 A M. to 8:15 A.M. and the evening peak hour of traffic occurs from 4:00 P.M. to 5:00
P.M. Pedestrian and bicycle activity was observed, and was reported to be relatively low at the
studied intersections.

The existing adjusted peak hour vehicle traffic volumes inclusive of heavy vehicles are shown in
Figure 4. The existing heavy vehicle peak hour volumes are shown in Figure 5.

Proposed Warehouse Development m
6

North Aurora, Hlinois



¥ :2unbig £0Z-0Z 10N gor

‘ou‘'suocQeqy BIBH,Q uaiBpur)Bjuey

s|oul|j] ‘eJoiny YLON

SSWNIOA dljjel) Busix3 juswdol|aaaq asnoyaiep

(nd 00:5-00:%) ¥NOH Mv3d Nd - (00)
(Wv S1:8-G1:2) ¥NOH Mvad WY - 00

aN3oa

<= (981) 08

;h@mm@@ﬂ%%ﬁ%@ .~ ¥a39vd D ¥a ANVT¥3AO
88 o
oo, «WM§
J .,v_ —OF
o - _J *
B9—> ' oo
o p—

37vOS Ol 1ON

. 1
© 2l
(06) Ll .ﬂ R lo|*
— 14
=€ i
©m 9 g2 6r
< < (GG 9y
< (I 6l
9t
o8z —, | €88
Wnuﬂ
L] ﬂ




G @inbi4 £02-0Z 0N qor

"ouj‘euooqyeseH,Q usiBpul‘Blusy]

) 4

sIoul||] ‘eJoiny YlON

SOUIN|OA dyjelL yoniy Bupsix3 Juswdojanaq asnoyaiepn

(Wd 00:5-00:%) MNOH Mvad Wd - (00)
(WV S1:8-61:2) YNOH Mvad WY - 00

(«EDER]

Jv0S OL LON

nﬁﬂ%@e@ﬁhﬁﬁww@@ . 30 39vd ® ¥a ANVINIAO
88 4 %. 0 58
©S , «— W0 co
J\| o L
oo -2 7 id - A%
©r— ' 55 O T—4NZ,*
— -4 Y

o
14
E — g
mm SEg |4 ¢
< WO~ | ()2
q P I UR
(! JAING
TENRER]
an g -2
meE—> {947
Ml |\ sss
Twno




Crash Analysis

KLOA, Inc. obtained crash data from IDOT for the most recent past five years available (2014 to
2018) for the intersections of IL 31 with Airport Road, Airport Road with Overland Drive East
and West, and Randall Road with Ice Cream Drive. A review of the crash data indicated that there
were no accidents reported at the intersections of Airport Road with Overland Drive (East and
West) and no fatalities reported at any of the intersections’. Tables 1 and 2 summarize the crash
data.

Table 1
IL 31 WITH AIRPORT ROAD ACCIDENT SUMMARY

Type of Accident Frequency

Year Angle Object Rear End Sideswipe Turning Other Total
2014 0 0 1 0 1 0 2
2015 0 0 i 0 I 0 2
2016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2017 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2018 0 0 1 0 1 0 2
Total 0 0 3 0 3 0 6
Average/Year - -- <1.0 - <1.0 -- 1.2
Table 2

RANDALL ROAD WITH ICE CREAM DRIVE ACCIDENT SUMMARY
Type of Accident Frequency

Angle Object Rear End Sideswipe Turning Other Total

2014 0 0 4 0 3 0 7
2015 0 0 8 0 0 0 8
2016 0 1 2 2 1 0 6
2017 0 0 6 0 1 0 7
2018 0 0 z 0 2 0 9
Total 0 1 27 2 7 0 37
Average/Year -- <1.0 54 <1.0 14 -- 7.4

! IDOT DISCLAIMER: The motor vehicle crash data referenced herein was provided by the Illinois Department of Transportation. The
author is responsible for any data analyses and conclusions drawn.

Proposed Warehouse Development KLm
9

North Aurora, Illinois



3. Traffic Characteristics of the Proposed Develo

In order to properly evaluate future traffic conditions in the surrounding area, it was necessary to
determine the traffic characteristics of the proposed development, including the directional
distribution and volumes of traffic that it will generate.

Proposed Site and Development Plan

As proposed, the site will be developed with three warehouse buildings for a total of 1,056,811
square feet. The development will provide approximately 69403 passenger parking spaces and
approximately 279 trailer parking spaces. A copy of the preliminary site plan is included in the
Appendix.

Site Access
Access to the development is proposed to be provided via the following:

. A full movement access drive on Overland Drive adjacent to the Euclid Beverage
warehouse access drive. The access drive will provide one inbound lane and two outbound
lanes striped for an exclusive left-turn lane and an exclusive right-turn lane with outbound
movements under stop sign control. Two out of the three proposed building will have
access to Overland Drive via this access drive while the passenger vehicle parking lot for
the smaller building (building A) will have a right-out access drive onto this access drive.

. A full movement access drive on Overland Drive adjacent to the Pace Fox Valley Division
building access drive. The access drive will serve exclusively building A and will provide
one inbound lane and one outbound lane with outbound movements under stop sign
control.

A copy of the site plan is included in the Appendix.

Directional Distribution

The directions from which employees, visitors, and trucks will approach and depart the site were
estimated based on existing travel patterns, as determined from the traffic counts. Figure 6
illustrates the directional distributions of passenger vehicles to/from the proposed development
while Figure 7 shows that of trucks.

Proposed Warehouse Development m
10

North Aurora, lllinois



g :ainbig 10Z-0Z :ON qor
'OU|"BUOOG Y BIBH O UB.BPUY 'Bluey

sioulj|] ‘edoiny YJON

uonnquisig [euoljoallq palewiisy e[oIyaA Jobusssed Juswdojereq esnoysIEm

NOILNGIMLSIA LNIDYHAd - Z00
AYERER

o
adl> 4 TTERRER] .
o \ yA®
II A R F N S s N s -— r - =M = d
: |
\d — L] I/I
0 m ! 2
~ . 41IS :
31vDS OL LON | _
L 1




£0T-0Z ‘ON qor

/. @inBig

“3U|'BUCOqY eIBH,0’UeBpulY‘Bluey m_oc____ _m- ol =< F—u.-_oz
k uolinquisig jeuonoallg pejewisy o|olysA AresH juswdojenaq esnoysiep

NOLLNELSIA INJOY3d - %400
aN3O3T

: ww

:

WY3¥2 32l

ALDER ¥

3vOS OL 1ON £\

15%




Development-Generated Traffic Volumes

The volume of traffic generated by a development is based on the type of land uses and the size of the
development. The number of peak hour vehicle trips estimated to be generated by the proposed
warehouse development was based on vehicle trip generation rates contained in 7rip Generation
Manual, 10 Edition, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (IT E). Further, based on
other studies of warehouse/distribution centers, it is estimated that approximately 20 percent of the
traffic approaching and departing the development during the peak hours of the day are trucks,
with the remaining 80 percent being passenger vehicles.

Table 3 shows the truck and passenger vehicle trips estimated to be generated for the proposed
development during the weekday morning and weekday afternoon peak hours, as well as the two-
way weekday daily traffic volumes.

Table 3
ESTIMATED TRIP GENERATION FOR THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
Weekday Morning Weekday Evening Daily
Peak Hour Peak Hour x

Two-Way
Type/Size In Out Total In Out Total Trips
Warehouse
150 117 35 152 42 113 155 1,716
(1,056,811 s.f))
Passenger
Vehicles (80%) 94 28 122 34 90 124 1,372
Trucks (20%) 23 7 30 8 23 31 344

Proposed Warehouse Development KLm
13

North Aurora, Illinois



4 Projected Traffic Conditions

The total projected traffic volumes include the existing traffic volumes, increase in background
traffic due to ambient growth, and the traffic estimated to be generated by the proposed subject
development,

Development Traffic Assignment

The estimated weekday morning and evening volumes that will be generated by the proposed
development were assigned to the roadway system in accordance with the previously described
directional distribution (Figures 6 and 7). The new passenger traffic assignment for the proposed
warehouse development is illustrated in Figure 8 and the new truck traffic assignment is illustrated
in Figure 9.

Background Traffic Conditions

The existing traffic volumes (Figure 4) were increased by a regional growth factor to account for
the increase in existing traffic related to regional growth in the area (i.e., not attributable to any
particular planned development). Based on ADT projections provided by the Chicago
Metropolitan Agency for Planning (CMAP) in a letter dated October 23, 2020, an increase of
approximately 1.6 percent per year compounded is projected. As such, a total background growth
of 10.0 percent (buildout year plus five years) was added to project Year 2026 conditions. Figure
10 shows existing peak hour traffic volumes with the 12 percent increase in order to illustrate Year
2026 no-build conditions. A copy of the CMAP 2050 projections letter is included in the Appendix.

Total Projected Traffic Volumes
The development-generated traffic was added to the existing traffic volumes accounting for

background growth to determine the Year 2026 total projected traffic volumes, shown in Figure
11.

Proposed Warehouse Development K ‘ m
14

North Aurora, Hlinois



8 :eunbiy £0Z-0Z :ON qor

*oUl‘BUOOqY‘RIBH,O US.Bpur'Blusy

sioulj|] ‘eloiny YMON

Sawn|oA oljes] ays 18buassed pajewils3 Juswdo|aAs( 8SNOUBIEM

(Wd 00:5-00:%) HNOH Yv3ad Wd - (00) 'SIAING SSIIJV ISOdO¥d
WV S1°861:2) ¥NOH MYAd WY - 00 Sl @@m.mzﬁj_mam _
aNIo31 m 3
2=
() -
o] 02) 08 ﬁ —.V \/ﬂ\

(- >l > @ AR
a_wul#.

=) ~ — l&

«— @F

19 ) =2

JIv3S Ol 1ON




6 :ainbi4 £02-0Z (0N qor

“au|’‘BucoqVy‘eleH,Q usiBpuly Blusy]

) 4

SOWN|OA SljJe] 8YS Yoni) pajewnss Ew%mu“wﬂ%ﬁ%uﬁﬂg

(Wd 00:5-00:%) HNOH Yv3d Wd - (00)
(NV S1:8-G1:2) UNOH Mvad WV - 00

N ERED

5‘2\1

Cidlaes

JTvOS Ol 1ON =\

5 mNEm%_ uoﬂea_ wmmdxm .

ﬁl.m.h
R

=) = =1 iy -7,
@ £ — J W () - o

] %3

o
<
O
3
(1) o T e | r—C—
s = (1) b (68 |
_o KN
Rm
W
a
-]
<
ANV, 4 Lﬁl (1
LAEEEEE]
mi—» J
€1 > -
m ) -
. |
- L]
r I
i .
1 |
| r




0L :einfi4  202-0T :ON qor

“au|‘Bucoqy’elsH,Q’ueiBpul ' Bluey m _ o C _ _ _ _ g m.h o._ : < F_H..__ o z
k S8WN|OA dljjel] pling ON 920¢C JesA juswdo|araq esnoysiep

(Wd 00:5-00:%) HNOH Mv3d Nd - (00) ¥Q $S3Q0V IOVHIAIE = i
(WY S4:8-G1:2) HNOH XY3d WY - 00 . GNIN3 Y H0 ANV THIAO A

GNIOT 88 4o
oo, «— Mg

Lﬁv_ ‘ﬁls.v

(=]
<€
)
e
aonm._ 88 AI AL ]
i ——
©6) £91 —»| 2= o[+
o] &
=g & SE5
e 9 s | ma s
” <o 3L | 19 19
q JiL |
...o [ VERRER] %
\ wo g5 2
un i — {91
ﬁ.ﬁu....
D

3IvOs Ol LON




Ll :@2JnB14  102-0Z :oN qor
Sioul|}| ‘eloiny YUON

“aU|‘BUDOQY 18,0 ’'usIBpuUyT’Bjusy]
SOWN|OA 2ljjel] pselaealold |elo iea
* IOA Slijel] psjosloid |ejol 9202 A juswdoleAaq asnoyaepm
(Wd 00:5-00:t) HNOH Mv3d Wd - (00) S3IAINA SSIDIV AISOJO¥Ud | ¥d $S320V IDVH3aAZE ,
(Wv S1:8-G1:2) ¥NOH XVAd WY - 00 B da v Ao SIS EIONYTEANG 2 RN LR
aNgoT gz 88 o
O For oo , < S bl
T.m,sm o) ¢ 4 ..v_* oo
2 LS
¥ AR g, o -2 _J (%
9 —>ie > 9 R AT 0 e s — ' 2o
' {-) - > 0 -
| 98 ﬂ

"y
et
o

[©]
18 5
|

(66) £91 —
(Sh v -

e
<+ (£9)
JYL| e

83 (42)
575 (649
75 (197

=ne g (500 8 —

35 am -

539 (T18) —

37VOS Ol ION

et =

I
I
I
i
I
I
i
i
i
]
I
]




5. Traffic Analysis and Recommendations

The following provides an evaluation conducted for the weekday morning and weekday evening
peak hours. The analysis includes conducting capacity analyses to determine how well the
roadway system and access drives are projected to operate and whether any roadway
improvements or modifications are required.

Traffic Analyses

Roadway and adjacent or nearby intersection analyses were performed for the weekday moming,
and evening peak hours for the existing (Year 2020), no-build (Year 2026), and total projected
(Year 2026) traffic volumes.

The traffic analyses were performed using the methodologies outlined in the Transportation
Research Board’s Highway Capacity Manual (HCM), 2010 and analyzed using
Synchro/SimTraffic 10 software. The analysis for the traffic-signal controlled intersections were
accomplished using field measured cycle lengths and phasings to determine the average overall
vehicle delay and levels of service.

The analyses for the unsignalized intersections determine the average control delay to vehicles at
an intersection. Control delay is the elapsed time from a vehicle joining the queue at a stop sign
(includes the time required to decelerate to a stop) until its departure from the stop sign and
resumption of free flow speed. The methodology analyzes each intersection approach controlled
by a stop sign and considers traffic volumes on all approaches and lane characteristics.

The ability of an intersection to accommodate traffic flow is expressed in terms of level of service,
which is assigned a letter from A to F based on the average control delay experienced by vehicles
passing through the intersection. The Highway Capacity Manual definitions for levels of service
and the corresponding control delay for signalized intersections and unsignalized intersections are
included in the Appendix of this report.

Summaries of the traffic analysis results showing the level of service and overall intersection delay
(measured in seconds) for the existing, Year 2026 no-build, and Year 2026 total projected
conditions are presented in Tables 4 through 9. A discussion of the intersections follows. Summary
sheets for the capacity analyses are included in the Appendix.

Proposed Warehouse Development m
19

North Aurora, Illinois



0¢ SIOUIJ]T “DAONY YLION
é u* Juawdo]aaa(q asnoyaivy pasodosq

"'SPU0A3s Ul PaInsesws st Aeje(q |
. . €6 -V S'Sy—d INOR] Y¥og
o 24 TS 69 £re 0L O O ~ <
4q ! Aepyad ST o
v v 0 g M - <. =
. . I's-V LTE-D IMOH Yeod  [SaaE
06 001 2 S
v v 87 9Tl g0z 09 wﬁ_..sz @ =5
v | o) q UPHRM
) Ty—-v 0or—a INOH Yeag
801 68 : F 3 3 Suruaay ~
q v I'y 0'S $'9Z LTL % 0, =
v \/ 0) g A = 2
b S ela
) Le-Vv £€CeE—-D INOH Yeag _m. =2 .,m..
¢ 08 97 L'L 817 76S Suopy (g
A4 \4 Aepyod
\4 \4 0 q PRM
: 9¢-V 8€EE—D INOE Yedd
N@ o o€ 6¢ 891 LvL Suosy O
v A4 o mT
A4 v g q Aepiom  EfSRS
67—V TE-0 mog Yeod RS
09 v . . ‘ . sumiory. AR
v v €T &3 TeC LSS i
\4 N4 0 | 4 AEPARM

yuSry/usnoay L  gSnoayr  ap1 WSy
[[B12A0 INOY Yedd

punoqinos pPUnNOqUION punogqisesy

avOd LIOJAIV HLIM 1€ T — SLTNSHY SISATVNV ALIDVAVD
¥ 9lqeL



12 SIOUl]]T ‘DAOINY YI4ON
‘t Juswidoana(q asnoyaav gy pasodod g
"SpU023s Ul panseaw st AB[o(] |
0vE—D T6T—D 6’8y —d 97— 1oy
4 yead
3 8T 80y | 601 9vT SSh | L¥S 6'S¢ 09T | 0€y | 60v | Surory [EWRE
v a g 0 a a a | a d | Aepwoons ERERS
= o S T = oy (=S
et 171-4 €s1—d 6'€E—D 0LT-D e 2 S
| S0 6€1 | 8§ 91 € €Y B33 v9 | €Sy | Tif | Sumiop
Vv qd Vv q Vv 9] O Vv a 9 Aepyoomy |
8TE— 0 $'97-0 98y —a 65T—0 TOH
L'0g yead
J 8¢ 765 | 66 1'€T 6LE | 6€S £6¢ TSI | THh | €1F | Suisay felESC
v a \4 o) a a a GE [t d | Aspyoons [ERCIRS
. IRAR: | Tri-d 9vE=D T9C-D TOH - R
9'61 yeod RS
q S0 L€l | ¢S €Sl (Al v'Se X4 9 | 'Sk | 91€ | Sunuopy
A4 2| A4 2| A4 a 9, v a D Aepyoom |
b'ST-D 881 — g $Ly—d Li€T-D Moy e
81T yesq =%
9 Gic €0E | 98 £0¢ Vel | STS 0'9¢ VIL | €Sy | 60y | Surmoay [
A4 o) \4 D) | a a g a a | sepyoam (IS £
901-4€ IRARE: 8'¥E—D I'L-D Gl S S
I'v1 yead B S
q £0 611 6y 0€l SuruIoy g
A4 dq v q Aepyo G

sy

[le12AQ

ysnoayy, 3oy

punoqyjnos

wSny/ySnoayy | o1 JySny/uSnoayl | 1o uSry | ySnoyy | yoy
punoOqylIoN

PUNOGISIAN

punoqjseq
HATIA WVHYED d0I HLIM VO TIVANVY — SLTNSHYA SISATVNY ALIDVAVD

INoy
Neag

S 9198,



Table 6
CAPACITY ANALYSIS RESULTS — UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS
EXISTING CONDITIONS

Weekday Morning Weekday Evening
Peak Hour Peak Hour
Intersection LOS Delay LOS Delay
Airport Reoad with Overland Drive East
* Southbound Ai)inroaeli B 10.6 B 10_;
o Eastbound Leﬂ Tum 7 A 7.8— A 78 7
i_vA.t.rport Road w1th Overland Drlve West
o Southbound Approach B 10.8 A 9.7
e Eastbound Left Tum A 7.7 A ';9
Overland Drive with Pace Fox Valley Drive B |
 Eastbound Approach A 9.1 A 8.9
. Northbound Left Turn A 7.2 A 7.2
;_Overland Dnve with Euchd Beverage Access Drlve
e Northbound Approach A 0.0 A 0.0
¢ Southbound Approach A 8.4 A 8.4
e Eastbound Left Turn A 7.2 A 0.0
® Westbound Left Turn A 0.0 A 0.0
LOS = Level of Service
Delay is measured in seconds.

Proposed Warehouse Development m
North Aurora, lllinois 22



Table 7
CAPACITY ANALYSIS RESULTS — UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS
YEAR 2026 NO-BUILD CONDITIONS

Weekday Morning Weekday Evening
Peak Hour Peak Hour

Intersection LOS Delay LOS

Airport Road with Overland Drive East
*  Southbound Approach B 10.8 B 1.0
e Eastbound Left Tum A 79 A 78
-V_ Airp or:tr Ro;d w1th 6;erland Dtive We;t
. Southbound Approach B 11.0 A 9.8
. Eastbound Left Turn A 7.7 A 7.9
Overland Drlve w1th Pace Fox Valley Drlve
° Eastbound Approach A 9.1 A 8.9
o Northbound Left Turn A 7.2 A 7.2
7 0verland Dnve with Euchd Beverage Access Drive
¢ Northbound Approach A 0.0 A 0.0
e Southbound Approach A 8.4 A 8.4
o Eastbound Left Tumn A 7.2 A 0.0
* Westbound Left Turn A 0.0 A OO
LOS = Level of Service
Delay is measured in seconds.

Proposed Warehouse Development K m
North Aurora, lllinois 23 L



Table 8
CAPACITY ANALYSIS RESULTS — UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS
YEAR 2026 FUTURE CONDITIONS

Weekday Morning Weekday Evening
Peak Hour Peak Hour
Intersection LOS Delay LOS
Airport Road with Overland Drive East
e Southbound Approach B 115 B 12,1
e Eastbound Left Tum A 8.1 A 79
:' ;Airpprt Roa(i w1th Overla-l.ld Drivé—wVVest
«  Southbound Approach B 11.9 B 10.8
e Eastbound Left Turn A 7.9 A 8.0
| Overla-trl“]'(-i Drlve with Pace Fox Valley Drive
e Eastbound Approach A 93 A 94
e Northbound Left Turn A 73 A 7.4
. 6i;erland Dri\fe_with Euclid Beverage Access Drive
e Northbound Approach A 0.0 A 0.0
e Southbound Approach A 8.5 A 8.4
¢ Eastbound Left Turn A 7.3 A 0.0
e Westbound Left Turn A 0.0 A 0.0
Overland Drive with Main Access Drive
® Southbound Approach A 9.1 A 9.0
; .E.z.i.sk-bound Left Tum " A 7.5 A 7.4
‘Ove’rlan(! Drivé with -S;c_(;;dary Access Drive
. Sbuthbound Approach A 8.6 A 8.9
e Eastbound Left Turn A 7.4 A 7 i)
LOS = Level of Service
Delay is measured in seconds.

Proposed Warehouse Development K
North Aurora, Illinois 24



Discussion and Recommendations

The following summarizes how the intersections are projected to operate and identifies any
roadway and traffic control improvements necessary to accommodate the development-generated
traffic.

1L 31 with Airport Road

The results of the capacity analyses indicate that the intersection currently operates at a LOS A
during the weekday morning and evening peak hours. Under Year 2026 no-build conditions, the
intersection is projected to continue to operate at the same LOS with minimal increases in delay
during both peak hours.

Under total projected conditions the intersection is projected to continue operating at the same
LOS as under year 2026 No Build conditions with an increase in overall delay of less than three
seconds. It should be noted that although the eastbound left-turn movement operates and will
continue operating at a LOS E, this is due to the time vehicles have to wait for the green phase and
not due to capacity deficiencies. Inspection of the capacity analyses indicate that the 95% percentile
queues for the left-turn lane will be approximately 175 feet and will be contained within he
provided storage length. Furthermore, the eastbound queues on Airport Road will not extend
beyond the access drive into the Village of North Aurora Police Department access drive. As such,
the proposed development traffic will have a limited impact on the operations of this intersection
and no roadway or traffic control improvements will be required.

Randall Road with Ice Cream Drive

The results of the capacity analyses indicate that the intersection currently operates at a LOS B
and C during the weekday morning and evening peak hours, respectively. Under Year 2026 no-
build conditions, the intersection is projected to continue to operate at the same LOS with minimal
increases in delay during both peak hours.

Under total projected conditions the intersection is projected to continue operating at the same
LOS as under Year 2026 no-build conditions with an increase in overall delay of less than two
seconds. As such, the proposed development traffic will have a limited impact on the operations
of this intersection and no roadway or traffic control improvements will be required.

Airport Road with Overland Drive East and West

The results of the capacity analyses indicate that all of the turning movements at these two
intersections are operating at LOS B or better and will continue to do so in the future with the
addition of background growth and the site generated traffic. Based on a review of the projected
traffic volumes and the results of the capacity analyses, exclusive left and right-turn lanes will not
be necessary. Further, inspection of the traffic simulations indicate that these two intersections will
operate efficiently with minimal queues and delays. As such, no geometric or traffic control
improvements will be required in conjunction with the proposed development,

Proposed Warehouse Development K
North Aurora, lllinois 25




Overland Drive with Pace Fox Valley Drive and Euclid Beverage Drive

The results of the capacity analyses indicate that all of the turning movements at these two
intersections operate at LOS A with minimal delays. Under future conditions and with the addition
of the site generated traffic volumes both intersections will continue to operate ta the same LOS
with minimal increases in delay. As such, no geometric or traffic control improvements will be
required in conjunction with the proposed development.

Overland Drive with Main Access Drive and Secondary Access Drive

The results of the capacity analyses indicate that all of the turning movements at these two
intersections will operate at LOS A with minimal delays. Based on the projected traffic volumes
and given that Overland Drive is a wide road (32 feet) there will be no need for providing an
exclusive left and/or right-turn lane into the main access drive. As previously discussed, the main
access drive will be located adjacent to the Euclid Beverage access drive and the secondary access
drive will be located adjacent to the Pace Fox Valley access drive. Based on a review of the traffic
simulation, the traffic flow in and out of the proposed access drives as well as those from the Pace
Fox Valley access drive and the Euclid Beverage access drive will operate efficiently due to the
low volume generated by all of these land uses. Furthermore, this situation is typical of business
parks where different businesses have access to a common road such as Overland Drive. In fact,
this situation currently occurs on the south side of Overland Drive and on the east side of Overland
Drive east. As such, no geometric or traffic control improvements will be required in conjunction
with the proposed development.

Proposed Warehouse Development K‘ m
North Aurora, lllinois 26



A traffic impact study was conducted for the proposed warehouse-distribution development to be
located on the north side of Overland Drive west of IL 31 just north of Airport Road. The plans
call for the site to be developed with approximately 1,056,811 square feet of
warehouse/distribution space. Access to the development is proposed via two access drives off
Overland Drive. One access drive will be located adjacent to the Euclid Beverage access drive
while the other will be located adjacent to the Pace Fox Valley access drive. Both access drives
will allow full inbound/outbound movements.

Based on the preceding analyses and recommendations, the following conclusions have been
made:

° Given that IL 31 is an established truck route serving all of the industrial and manufacturing
land uses on the north side of I-88 and given the location of the I-88 ramps, the majority of
the truck traffic will be oriented to/from the south on IL 31.

o The results of the capacity analysis indicate that all of the intersections are operating at
acceptable LOS and will continue to do so under future conditions, thus indicating that the

roadway system has adequate reserve capacity to accommodate the increase in traffic.

. The 95™ percentile queues on Airport Road at its signalized intersection with IL 31 will
not extend beyond the access drive serving the Village of North Aurora Police Station.

o The proposed access system will be adequate in accommodating the site-generated traffic
and will work efficiently with the adjacent access drives.

Proposed Warehouse Development K
North Aurora, Illinois 27



